FIRST SUPPLEMENT DATED 27 OCTOBER 2015 TO THE BASEPROSPECTUS

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK
(a limited liability company incorporated in Franes a “société anonynig
and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
(a limited liability company incorporated in Gueray
and
CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

(a limited liability company incorporated in France

Programme for the Issuance of Certificates
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

This is a supplement (thd=irst Supplement’ or “Supplement) to the base prospectus dated 20
April 2015 in connection with the Programme for tlssuance of Certificates by Crédit Agricole
Corporate and Investment Bank, Crédit Agricole (HBance (Guernsey) Limited and Crédit
Agricole CIB Financial Solutions (each #&suer and together théssuerg and unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by Crédit Agricole Corporate Investment Bank (ti@uarantor) (theBase
Prospectug.

The Base Prospectus constitutes a “base prospefciushe purposes of Directive 2003/71/EC as
amended (the Prospectus Directivé) and this Supplement constitutes a “supplememnt’ the
purposes of Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

Capitalised terms not specifically defined in tBigpplement will have the meanings given to them in
the Base Prospectus.

This Supplement has been approved by the Centrdt Balreland (theCentral Bank), as competent
authority under the Prospectus Directive. The Gémank only approves this Supplement as meeting
the requirements imposed under Irish and EuropeaonJaw pursuant to the Prospectus Directive.

The Issuers and the Guarantor, having taken adloresble care to ensure that such is the case, each
confirms that, to the best of its knowledge anddbethe information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Supplement is in accordance thighfacts and does not omit anything likely to etffe

the import of such information. The Issuers andGo@rantor accept responsibility accordingly.



In the event of any inconsistency between (a) datesient in this Supplement and (b) any other
statement in or incorporated by reference in theseBRrospectus, the statements made in this
Supplement will prevail.

Save as disclosed in this Supplement, to the Hesieoknowledge of the Issuers and the Guarantor,
there has been no significant new factor, matestabr or inaccuracy relating to the information
included in the Base Prospectus since the puldicati the Base Prospectus.

In accordance with Article 16 (2) of the Prospedbusective, investors who have already agreed to
purchase or subscribe for the Certificates prioth® publication of this Supplement will have the
right, exercisable until 29 October 2015, to withdrtheir acceptances.

The Base Prospectus and this Supplement are deaflabviewing on the Irish Stock Exchange
website (www.ise.ie) and the Creédit Agricole Cogder and Investment Bank website (www.ca-
cib.com).

Copies of the Base Prospectus and this Supplemantb®a obtained from the registered office of
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank amal $pecified office of the Principal Certificate
Agent.

The purpose of this Supplement is to:

1) incorporate by reference the audited financiaksteints at 31 December 2014 of Crédit
Agricole CIB Finance (Guernsey) Limitéd:;

2) incorporate by reference the audited financiakstaints at 31 December 2014 of Crédit
Agricole CIB Financial Solutions;

3) incorporate by reference the financial statemen®®aune 2015 of Crédit Agricole CIB
Finance (Guernsey) Limite;

4) incorporate by reference the financial statemenB®aune 2015 of Crédit Agricole CIB
Financial Solutioné;

5) incorporate by reference the consolidated finaratetements at 30 June 2015 ) of Crédit
Agricole Corporate and Investment Bahk;

! This document has been published on Luxembourg k StocExchange’s website:
https://www.bourse.lu/oam/resultatsrecherche?seapgrtpam&oam_codiflnstr=&oam_libEmet=Cr%C3%A9dit+agrieo
&oam_typeRechLib=MILIEU&oam_paysEmet=-1&oam_codiffDecla=&oam_idTypeDepo=-1&oam_anRef=-
1&oam_startDatePubli=&oam_endDatePubli=&oam_indic@ant=0&=Rechercher

2 This document has been published on Crédit AgriColgorate and Investment Bank’s website:
http://mediacommun.ca-cib.com/sitegenic/medias/DBL&78/2014-12-31-etats-financiers-cfs-english.pdf

% This document has been published on Crédit AgriColporate and Investment Bank’s website:
https://www.bourse.lu/oam/resultatsrecherche?seapgtpam&oam_codiflnstr=&oam_libEmet=Cr%C3%A9dit+agrieo

&oam_typeRechLib=MILIEU&oam_paysEmet=-1&oam_codiffDecla=&oam_idTypeDepo=-1&oam_anRef=-
1&oam_startDatePubli=&oam_endDatePubli=&oam_indic@ant=0&=Rechercher

4 This document has been published on Crédit AgriColorate and Investment Bank’s website:
http://mediacommun.ca-cib.com/sitegenic/medias/DB&78/2015-06-30-etats-financiers-cfs-english.pdf

5 This document has been published on Crédit AgriColporate and Investment Bank’s website:
http://www.ca-cib.com/group-overview/regulated-inforirmathtm



6) amend the Summary of the Base Prospectus accordingl

7) update certain information in the Summary of thedBRrospectus;
8) update the Fitch Rating of Crédit Agricole CIB;

9) update the Form of Final Terms and

10) correct a manifest error in the Base Prospectgstasut below.

1. Incorporation by reference of the audited finan@l statements as at and for the period
ending 31 December 2014 of Credit Agricole CIB Firace (Guernsey) Limited

Page number of the audited finangial
statements at 31 December 2014| of
Credit Agricole CIB  Finance
(Guernsey) Limited

Independent auditor’s report Page 5
Statement of comprehensive income Page 6
Statement of financial position Page 7
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 8
Statement of cash flows Page 9

Notes to the financial statements Pages 10 to 28

The information incorporated by reference thatdasincluded in the cross-reference list, is consde
as additional information and is not required by televant schedules of the Commission Regulation
(EC 809/2004)Rrospectus Regulatioh

2. Incorporation by reference of the audited finan@l statements as at and for the period
ending 31 December 2014 of Credit Agricole CIB Finacial Solutions

Page number of the audited finangial
statements at 31 December 2014| of
Credit Agricole CIB Financia
Solutions

Independent auditor’s report Pages 3to 4

Statement of comprehensive income Page 6

Statement of financial position Page 5

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 8

Statement of cash flows Page 11

Notes to the financial statements Pages 10 to 55

Relevant pages are in relation to the PDF pages.




The information incorporated by reference thatasincluded in the cross-reference list, is consde
as additional information and is not required by tblevant schedules of the Prospectus Regulation.

3. Incorporation by reference of the financial staéments as at and for the period ending 30
June 2015 of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

Page number of the financial
statements at 30 June 2015 of Credi
Agricole CIB Finance (Guernsey)
Limited

[

Statement of director’s responsibilities Page 4
Statement of comprehensive income Page 5
Statement of financial position Page 6
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 7
Statement of cash flows Page 8

Notes to the financial statements

Pages 9 to 27

The information incorporated by reference thatdasincluded in the cross-reference list, is congde
as additional information and is not required by tblevant schedules of the Prospectus Regulation.

4. Incorporation by reference of the financial staéments as at and for the period ending 30
June 2015 of CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB FINANCIAL SOLUTION S

Page number of the financial
statements at 30 June 2015 of Credi
Agricole CIB Financial Solutions

[

Balance sheet - Assets Page 2
Balance sheet — Liabilities and Shareholder’s gquit Page 3
Income statement Page 4
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 5
Cash flow statement Page 6

Relevant pages are in relation to the PDF pages.

5. Incorporation by reference of the financial revew as at and for the period ending 30 June
2015 of Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bak (contained in the update of 2014 shelf-

registration document)

The following table indicates the pages refereram@sesponding to the main information headings
required by regulation EC 809/2004 (annex XI) eingcthe terms of the Prospectus Directive.

update of 2014
shelf-registration

Agricole CIB
1. Person responsible 114
2. Statutory auditors 115
3. Risk factors 10to 20

6. Organisational structure

Page number of the

document of Crédit



6.1 Brief description of the group and the g&iposition within the Group

14. Documents on display

6.2 Dependence relationships within the Group 95
7. Recent trends 9
9. Administrative, management and supervisory bode
9.1 Information concerning members of the adstiiative and management 103 to 104
bodies
9.2 Conflicts of interest in the administratimeanagement and supervisory
bodies
10. Major shareholders 72
11. Financial information concerning the issuer’s assstand liabilities,

financial position and profits and losses
11.1 Historical financial information
11.2 Financial statements
11.3 Auditing of historical annual financial satents
11.4 Dates of the most recent financial disclesur
11.5 Interim financial information 43 to 100
Income statement 45
Net income and other comprehensive inc 46
Assets 47
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity 48
Change in shareholder’s equity 49
Cash flow statement 50
11.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings
11.7 Significant change in the issuer’s finanoiatommercial position
12. Material contracts
13. Third party information and statements by experts and declarations of 43 to 10C

any interests 19 to 20

The information incorporated by reference thatasincluded in the cross-reference list, is consde

as additional information and is not required by tblevant schedules of the Prospectus Regulation

6. Amendments to the Summary of the Base Prospect(sages 15 to 61 of the Base Prospectus)

Section B.12 headetBelected key financial information and no materadverse change and no

significant change statements’ amended as follows (pages 18 to 19):



B.12 Selected key
financial
information and
no material
adverse change
and no
significant
change
statements

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB'desgted key financial information a

at and for the period ending 31 December 2014:

Euros millions 31/12/2014 31/12/2013*
589,363

Total Balance Sheet 644,097

(a) Fund for general banking risks

(b) Minority interests 97 110
(c) Shareholders equity (Group 16,012 15,303
Share) and shareholder advances
Total (a) + (b) + (c) 16,109 15,413
Net income for year 1,061 587
Net banking income 4,352 3,755
Gross operating income 1,572 975
Group Share 1,049 565
Minority interests 12 22

"Data restated for the change in accounting poktated to new
consolidation standards and to IFRS 5.

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB'deseted key financial information &

at and for the six month period ending 30 June 2015

Euros millions 30/06/2015 30/06/2014
Total Balance Sheet 567,265 572,65
(a) Fund for general banking risks --
(b) Minority interests 99 95
(c) Shareholders equity (Group 15,775 14,985
Share) and shareholder advances
Total (a) + (b) + (c) 15,874 15,080
Net income for year 535 525
Net banking income 2,986 2,120
Gross operating income 1,429 76
Group Share 527 519
Minority interests 8 6

n

® Element B.12 is amended by the supplement date@ciber 2015 due to the inclusion of the finanstatements at 30 June 2015 of

Crédit Agricole CIB



There has been no significant change in the fimdrmi trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB since 30 June 2015 and no materiakasky change in its prospects since
31 December 2014.]

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FG'slected key financial informatig
as at and for the period ending 31 December 2014:

>

Euros Thousands 31/12/2013 31/12/2014
Total Balance Sheet 5,807,886 4,438,504
Net result 15 15
Share capital 11 15
Result carried forward 4] -]

=]

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FGslected key financial informatio
as at and for the sixth month period ending 30 A@1&°

Euros Thousands 30/06/2015 30/06/2014
Total Balance Sheet 3,450,672 4,840,484
Net result 0 0
Share capital 15 15
Result carried forward 16 15

There has been no significant change in the fimdnmi trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB FG since 30 June 2015 and no matexiblerse change in its prospects
since 31 December 2014.]

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FSelected key financial information
as at and for the period ending 31 December 3014:
Euros 31/12/2013 31/12/2014
1,880,367,0
Total Balance Sheet 1,113,605,844 29
Net result 543 626
Share capital 225,000 225,000
Result carried forward (25,207) (24,665)]
[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FSelected key financial information

" Element B.12 is amended by the supplement daté@cfober 2015 due to the inclusion of the auditehcial statements at 31
December 2014 of Crédit Agricole CIB FG

8 Element B.12 is amended by the supplement daté@cfober 2015 due to the inclusion of the finanstatements at 30 June 2015 of
Crédit Agricole CIB FG

° Element B.12 is amended by the supplement date@icBober 2015 due to the inclusion of the auditshcial statements at 31
December 2014 of Crédit Agricole CIB FS



as at and for the sixth month period ending 30 2@i&*°

Euros 30/06/2015 30/06/2014
1,484,620,8
Total Balance Sheet 2,336,330,786 84
Net result - 0
Share capital 225,000 225,000
Result carried forward (24,039) (24,665)

There has been no significant change in the fimdrmi trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB FS since 30 June 2015 and no mateiderse change in its prospects
since 31 December 2014.]

7.A Update the Summary of the Base Prospectus (pasy#5 to 61 of the Base Prospectus).
Section B.4b headed “Known trends affecting Issaradt Issuer's industries” is amended as follows
(page 17):

B.4b Known trends Known trends affecting the Issuer and the compaofiebe Crédit Agricole CIB Group
affecting Issuer | (the Group), as well as the sectors in which theu@rand the Issuer operate, include
and Issuer's

. . 11
industries - The continuing evolution of the global economic environment;

- The reform of the solvency ratios under BaseCRR / CRD4), with the minimum
requirement of CET1 set at 4% in 2014 and at 4.5% in the following years;

- The ongoingriternational debate on the harmonization of accounting standards;

- The introduction of a new resolution mechanisnthbat the national and European
levels;

- Changes in the regulatory framework imposing \e&r enore prudent treatment of the
balance sheet, including the management of indisdtased on the total balance sheet
size, e.g. the leverage ratio (required to be al3%g the Minimum Required Eligible
Liabilities (MREL) from the European Bank Recoveaynd Resolution Directive
(BRRD), based on the total liabilities and aimeeérduring a minimum level of eligible
debt for a bail-in, Total Loss Absorption Capadity AC), as well as contributions tp
the Single Resolution Fund or the Bank Levy.

7.B Update the Summary of the Base Prospectus (pag&5 to 61 of the Base Prospectus).
Section B.17 headeredit ratings assigned to the issuer or its debturities at the request or with
the cooperation of the issuer in the rating pro¢eissamended as follows (pages 21 to 22):

B.17 Credit ratings [The current ratings for Crédit Agricole CIB arefaows:

§SS|gned .to the Rating Agency Short Term Debt  Senior Long Term
issuer or its debt Debt

1% Element B.12 is amended by the supplement date@c@ober 2015 due to the inclusion of the finansiatements at 30 June 2015 of
Crédit Agricole CIB FS

" Element B.4b is amended by the supplement datécBiber 2015 due to new known trends affectingesand Issuer’s industries



securities at the
request or with
the cooperation
of the issuer in
the rating
Zprocess

Fitch Ratings Limited F1 A positive outlook
(Fitch)
Moody's Investors Prime-1 A2 positive outlook

Service Ltd Moody's)

Standard & Poor's Rating A-1
Services, a division of
Standard & Poor's Credit
Market Service Europe
Limited (S&P)
[Not applicable [Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agole CIB FS] does not hav
ratings.]
[The credit ratings will be treated for the purposé Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009
credit rating agencies (as amended) @A Regulation) as having been issued |
S&P, Moody's and Fitch upon registration pursuantthte CRA Regulation. S&H
Moody's and Fitch are established in the EuropeainrJand have registered under f
CRA Regulation.]
[Not applicable][The

A negative outlook

Certificates have [not] beenated [fe] by

[}

DN
Dy

[Fitch][Moody's][S&P]]]

8. Update of the Fitch Rating of Crédit Agricole CB

The following paragraph in the section head@&escription of Crédit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bankis amended as follows (pages 1196):

As of 23 June 2015 (last rating action) Fitch Rgdihas assigned the following Ratings:

. Short Term IDR: F1

A short term issuer default ratindR ) issued by Fitch reflects a financial institut®rulnerability to default in
the short term. For financial institutions and matter issuers, the "short term" typically meangaip3

months.

. Long Term IDR: A, positive outlook

Along term IDR issued by Fitch in respect of afigial institution expresses Fitch's opinion ort thstitution's
relative vulnerability to default on its financiabligations. In accordance with Fitch's rating digbns, the
default risk addressed by the IDR is generally tifate financial obligations whose non-payment lddibest
reflect the uncured failure of that entity". Fitcbnsiders that the obligations of financial ingtdns whose non-
payment would best reflect uncured failure are Usgusenior obligations to third-party, non-goverrmme
creditors. IDRs of financial institutions therefotgpically opine on the probability of default oruch

obligations.

12 Element B.17 is amended by the supplement datedcober 2015 due to the change of Fitch Ratin@rétlit Agricole CIB



The Fitch Ratings group of companies establishedhé EU, which includes Fitch Ratings Limited, was
registered on October 31, 2011 in accordance W&hRA Regulation.

9. Update of the Form of Final Terms

The following sub-paragraphs in the section hed@ddit Linked Certificates” (paragraph 25 of thedfm of
Final Terms)are amended as follows (page 261):

(bb) Domestic Currency-{CreditLinked-Condition-10) [Lawful currency of [Canada][Japan][Switzerland$th
United Kingdom][United States of America]][Eurod]
[As per Credit Linked Condition 10]

(cc) Domestic Law{CreditLinked-Condition-10): [laws of England][laws of the State of New York]gAver
Credit Linked Condition 10]

10. Correction of a manifest in the Base Prospectus

Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditions Part A Chagdtérheaded “Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature
Conditions” and Annex 7 — Payoff Feature Conditi®st B Chapter 3 headed “Dual Currency (Redemption
Payoff Feature Conditions” are amended as follows:



Payoff Feature Conditions: Part A: Chapter 11: DualCurrency (Interest) Payoff Feature Conditions

This chapter sets out additional terms and condgidor Certificates in respect of which the appiiaFinal
Terms specify Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Featio be applicable.

The following terms and conditions (tBeal Currency (I nterest) Payoff Feature Conditions) shall apply to the
Certificates if the applicable Final Terms indicatieat Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature (tbeal
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature) is applicable. These Dual Currency (Interest) &fyFeature Conditions
are subject to completion in accordance with thpligable Final Terms.

All capitalised terms that are not defined in thd3eal Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature Conditioos
elsewhere in the Terms and Conditions will haventieanings given to them in the applicable Finalmisr

11 DUAL CURRENCY (INTEREST) PAYOFF FEATURE

If Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature is agalble the interest amounts (if any) will be paidity one of
the Interest Currencies.

11.1 Definitions and interpretation

For the purposes of these Dual Currency (Intefeaypff Feature Conditions, the following terms khal
have the following meanings:

Dual Currency Method means (i) if 'multiplication’ is specified in thapplicable Final Terms,

multiplying the Interest Amount by the relevant D@urrency (Interest) Exchange Rate or (ii) if
'division' is specified in the applicable Final ifex;, dividing the Interest Amount by the relevantabDu

Currency (Interest) Exchange Rate.

Dual Currency (Interest) Exchange Ratemeans, with respect to an Interest Currency, #ie r

determined in accordance with the definition of "R&te" provided for in the FX Linked Asset

Conditions. For this purpose, the FX Linked Assenditions are incorporated in, and apply mutatis
mutandis (as though such provisions were set odullnherein) to, these Dual Currency (Interest)
Payoff Feature Conditions subject to the following:

- references to the FX Rate shall be deemed to legersfes to the Dual Currency (Interest)

Exchange Rate;

- references to thBase CurrencyReference-Currency shall be deemed to be refesencthe
Specified Currency;

- references to thReference CurrencyBase-Currency shall be deemed to be referencée to
relevant Interest Currency; and

- references to a relevant Observation Date shallldmmed to be references to the relevant
Interest Determination Date.

Interest Amount has the meaning set out in General Condition3ifitions.
Interest Currency means each currency specified as such in thecadi Final Terms.
Interest Determination Date has the meaning set out in General Condition2gigitions.

Interest Payment Date has the meaning set out in General Condition G#n€ondition 20
(Definitions.

11.2 Methodology

If Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature is sfiedias applicable in the applicable Final Terrhg, t
amount payable on each Interest Payment Date wilpdyable in any one of the Interest Currencies.



The Calculation Agent will determine the amountb® paid in accordance with the Dual Currency
Method on the relevant Interest Determination Date.

And:



Payoff Feature Conditions: Part B: Chapter 3: DualCurrency (Redemption) Payoff Feature
Conditions

This chapter sets out additional terms and condgidor Certificates in respect of which the appiiaFinal
Terms specify Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoftireato be applicable.

The following terms and conditions (tBeial Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature Conditions) shall apply
to the Certificates if the applicable Final Ternmglicate that Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Beatthe
Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature is applicable. These Dual Currency (Redemptionyd®aFeature
Conditions are subject to completion in accordanith the applicable Final Terms.

All capitalised terms that are not defined in th&aal Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature Condsiar
elsewhere in the Terms and Conditions will haventieanings given to them in the applicable Finalmisr

3 DUAL CURRENCY (REDEMPTION) PAYOFF FEATURE

If Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature is laggble the amount payable on redemption will bgaide
in any one of the applicable Redemption Currencies.

3.1 Definitions and interpretation

For the purposes of these Dual Currency (RedemnpBayoff Feature Conditions, the following terms
shall have the following meanings:

Dual Currency Method means (i) if 'multiplication’ is specified in thapplicable Final Terms,
multiplying the Final Redemption Amount, Early Reg#ion Amount or Instalment Redemption
Amount, as the case may be, by the relevant Duate@ay (Redemption) Exchange Rate or (ii) if
'division' is specified in the applicable Final ffex, dividing the Final Redemption Amount, Early
Redemption Amount or Instalment Redemption Amowast,the case may be, by the relevant Dual
Currency (Redemption) Exchange Rate.

Dual Currency (Redemption) Exchange Rateneans, with respect to a Redemption Currency;atee
determined in accordance with the definition of "R&te" provided for in the FX Linked Asset
Conditions. For this purpose, the FX Linked Assenditions are incorporated in, and apply mutatis
mutandis (as though such provisions were set ofullierein) to, these Dual Currency (Redemption)
Payoff Feature Conditions subject to the following:

- references to the FX Rate shall be deemed to keerefes to the Dual Currency (Redemption)
Exchange Rate;

- references to thBase CurrencyReference-Currency shall be deemed to be refesancthe
Specified Currency;

- references to thReference CurrencyBase-Currency shall be deemed to be referencie to
relevant Redemption Currency; and

- references to a relevant Observation Date shadldeened to be references to the-Redemption

Date,—Early-Redemption-Date-ortnstalment-DREdemption Determination Date as the

case may be.

Early Redemption Amount has the meaning set out in General ConditionR#iqitions.
Early Redemption Datehas the meaning set out in General Condition2§igitions.
Final Redemption Amount has the meaning set out in General Condition2igitions.

Instalment Date has the meaning set out in General ConditionZiitions.



Instalment Redemption Amounthas the meaning set out in General ConditionZdifitions.

Redemption Currency means, with respect to a Redemption Determinddate, as the case may be,
each currency specified as such in the applicaipia Ferms.

Redemption Datehas the meaning set out in General Condition®gifitiong.
Specified Currencyhas the meaning set out in General Condition2iqitions.

3.2 Methodology

If Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature iscifed in the applicable Final Terms as applicable,

the amount payable on the Redemption Date, EartieRetion Date or Instalment Date, as the case
may be, will be payable in any one of the applieaBedemption Currencies. The Calculation Agent
will determine the amount to be paid in accordanitk the Dual Currency Method on the relevant date
on which the Final Redemption Amount, Early RedeampfAmount or each Instalment Redemption

Amount, as the case may be, is to be determined.

The date of this Supplement is 27 October 2015




ANNEX - SUMMARY

This section provides a summary of the Programnaeaamnissue specific summary which will be usedstures

of Certificates

Summaries aremade up of disclosure requirements known as "Elemefitsése Elements are numbered in

Sections A—- E (A.1 - E.7).

This summary contains all the Elements requirdoetincluded in a summary for these types of seearénd
issuers. SomeElementsare not required to be addressed and accordihghg tmay be gaps in the numbering

sequence of the elements.

Even though an Elememay be required to be inserted in the summaryusecaf the type of securities and
issuers, it is possible that no relevant informatian be given regarding the Element. In this casteort
description of the Element is includedtire summary with the mention of "Not Applicable".

Section A — Introduction and Warnings

Al

Introduction
and warnings

This summary should be read as an introductiohédase Prospectus. Any decision
invest in Certificates should be based on consiaeraof the Base Prospectus as
whole by the investor.

—

(0]

Where a claim relating to the information contaiedhe Base Prospectus is brought

before a court, the plaintiff investor might, undlee national legislation of the Memb
States, have to bear the costs of translating thse BProspectus before the le
proceedings are initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons whave tabled the summary, includi
any translation thereof, but only if the summarisleading, inaccurate or inconsiste
when read together with the other parts of the Barespectus or it does not provig
when read together with the other parts of the Basspectus, key information in ord
to aid investors when considering whether to iniresihe Certificates.

er

jal

9
nt
e,
er

A.2

Consent for use
of Base
Prospectus in
subsequent
resale or final
placement,
indication of
offer period and
conditions to
consent for
subsequent
resale or final
placement and
warning

[In the context of the offer of the Certificatesorfn time to time in
[France][and][Republic of Italy][and][Luxembourghd][lreland] (the Public Offer
Jurisdiction[s]), the Issuer consents to the use of the Base &ctsp as s
supplemented where the offer is made in circumsnehere there is no exempti
from the obligation under Directive 2003/71/EC (aamiendments thereto, includir
the Directive 2010/73/EU, to the extent implemenitethe relevant Member State)
publish a prospectus (don-exempt Offer) during the period frome]] until [e] (the
Offer Period) and in the Public Offer Jurisdiction[(s)]) by:
[(2)
(&) [any financial intermediary], subject to [the relevant conditions]; and
(b) any financial intermediary appointed after [datefl avhose name is published
the website http://www.ca-cib.com/our-offers/rateadit-and-cross-asset
derivatives.htm and identified as an Authorisede@if in respect of the Nor
exempt Offer;]
[(2) any financial intermediary which shall, foretiduration of the Offer Period, publig
on its website that it is using the Base Prospefbussuch Non-exempt Offer i
accordance with the consent of the Issuer andithatcepts the Authorised Offer
Terms relating to the use of the consent and theratonditions.

g9
(o
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Section A — Introduction and Warnings

[in each case] for so long as they are authorisedake such offers under the Directive

2004/39/EC (as amended) (tharkets in Financial Instruments Directive) ([in each
case any such financial intermediary being an][th&horised Offeror).

[Authorised Offeror Terms are fo].]

[The Issuer may also give consent to additionarfirial intermediary(ies) so long as

they are authorised to make such offers under thekdls in Financial Instrumen
Directive (also authorised Offeror) after [date] and, if it does so, it will publisimy
new information in relation to such Authorised Offes at p] (specify relevan
websité.]

[If any Authorised Offeror is permitted to use tBase Prospectus during the Off
Period, any such Authorised Offeror is required,tfe duration of the Offer Period,

er
(0]

publish on its website that it is using the Basespectus for the relevant Non-exempt

Offer with the consent of the Issuer and in accocdawith certain conditions.]

An investor intending to acquire or acquiring angrifficates from an Authorise
Offeror will do so, and offers and sales of the tifileates to an investor by &
Authorised Offeror will be made, in accordance vétty terms and other arrangeme
in place between such Authorised Offeror and sumsrestor including as to pric
allocations and settlement arrangements (flhems and Conditions of the Non-
exempt Offer). The Issuer will not be a party to any such ageaments with investor
(other than dealers) in connection with the offer sale of the Certificates an
accordingly, the Base Prospectus and any applidatdé terms will not contain suc
information. The Terms and Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer sl be provided
to investors by that Authorised Offeror at the time of the Non-exempt Offer.
Neither the Issuer[, the Guarantor] nor any ofdieealers or other Authorised Offerg
have any responsibility or liability for such infoation.]

[Not applicable. No financial intermediary is invedl in the offers and sales of t
Certificates.]

nts
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Section B — Issuer

B.1 Legal and [Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank -édir Agricole CIB — CACIB
commercial (Crédit Agricole CIB [or thelssuer] [or the Guarantor])]
name of the [Crédit Agricole CIB Finance (Guernsey) Limite@rédit Agricole CIB FG or the
Issuer Issuen)]
[Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Solution€¢édit Agricole CIB FS or thelssuer)]
B.2 Domicile and [Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank ifranchSociété Anonyméoint

legal form of the
issuer,
legislation
under which the
Issuer operates
and country of
incorporation of
Issuer

stock company) with a Board of Directors governgddodinary company law, in

particular the Second Book of the French Commef@ale Code de commerke
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank igistered at theRegistre du

Commerce et des Sociétés de Nantanger the reference SIREN 304 187 701 and its

registered office is located at 9 quai du Présitkentl Doumer, 92920 Paris La Défer]
Cedex, France.

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank igradit institution approved i
France and authorised to conduct all banking oerstind provide all investment ai
related services referred to in the French Moneday Financial CodeCpde monétaire

se

=

nd
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et financie). In this respect, Crédit Agricole CIB is subjéztoversight of the Europegn
and French responsible supervisory authoritiegjquéarly the European Central Bank

and the French Prudential and Resolution Supervisothority (ACPR). In its capacity|
as a credit institution authorised to provide ir@Ent services, the Company is subj
to the French Monetary and Financial Co@®de monétaire et financigrmarticularly
the provisions relating to the activity and contoblcredit institutions and investme
service providers.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB FG is a limited liability nogellular company incorporated

Guernsey and having its domicile in Guernsey andegistered at the Register

Companies in Guernsey.]

[Crédit Agricole CIB FS is a limited liability congmy incorporated in France as
"société anonynieand having its domicile in France. As a Frenchposation having

limited liability, Crédit Agricole CIB FS is subjeto articles L.225-1 and following gf

Book 2 of theCode de commegcof France. As a financial institution, Crédit fgie
CIB is subject to articles L.511-1 and followingdain.531-1 and following of th€ode
monétaire et financieof France.]

ect

B.4b

Known trends
affecting Issuer
and Issuer's
industries

Known trends affecting the Issuer and the companfiebe Crédit Agricole CIB Group

(the Group), as well as the sectors in which theugrand the Issuer operate, include

- The continuing evolution of the global economic environment;

- The reform of the solvency ratios under BaseCRR / CRD4), with the minimum

requirement of CET1 set at 4% in 2014 and at 4.5% in the following years;

- The ongoing international debate tha harmonization of accounting standards;

- The introduction of a new resolution mechanisnthbat the national and Europe
levels;

- Changes in the regulatory framework imposing \eer enore prudent treatment of t
balance sheet, including the management of indisdtased on the total balance sh
size, e.g. the leverage ratio (required to be al38s§ the Minimum Required Eligibl

Liabilities (MREL) from the European Bank Recoveand Resolution Directive

(BRRD), based on the total liabilities and aimeeémduring a minimum level of eligibl
debt for a bail-in, Total Loss Absorption Capadify_AC), as well as contributions t
the Single Resolution Fund or the Bank Lé&by.

B.5

Description of
group and
Issuer's position
within the

group

Please refer to Elements B.14 and B.16.

[Crédit Agricole CIB is directly owned by Crédit Agole S.A., the listed entity of th
Crédit Agricole S.A. group (th€rédit Agricole S.A. group). Crédit Agricole CIB is
the parent company of the [Group Crédit Agricol® Qthe Group)]. The Group is the
corporate and investment banking arm of the Crglitcole S.A. group.]

[The Group includes Crédit Agricole CIB FG which asconsolidated subsidiary
Crédit Agricole CIB. Crédit Agricole CIB FG has sabsidiaries]
[The Group includes Crédit Agricole CIB FS whichdsconsolidated subsidiary
Crédit Agricole CIB. Crédit Agricole CIB FS has sabsidiaries.]

B.9

Profit forecast

[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB does not mabofit forecasts or estimates.]

D

3 Element B.4b is amended by the supplement datécBiber 2015 due to new known trends affectingesand Issuer’s industries
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or estimate

[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB FG does not keaprofit forecasts or estimates.]
[Not Applicable. Crédit Agricole CIB FS does not kegorofit forecasts or estimates.]

B.10

Qualifications
in audit report
on historical
financial
information

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications irethudit report on historical financi
information for Crédit Agricole CIB.]

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications irethudit report on historical financi
information for Crédit Agricole CIB FG.]

[Not Applicable. There were no qualifications irethudit report on historical financi
information for Crédit Agricole CIB FS.]
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B.12 Selected key
financial
information and
no material
adverse change
and no
significant
change
statements

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB'desgted key financial information gs

at and for the period ending 31 December 2014:

Euros millions 31/12/2014 31/12/2013*

Total Balance Sheet 644,097

(a) Fund for general banking risks

589,363

(b) Minority interests 97 110
(c) Shareholders equity (Group 16,012 15,303
Share) and shareholder advances
Total (a) + (b) + (¢) 16,109 15,413
Net income for year 1,061 587
Net banking income 4,352 3,755
Gross operating income 1,572 975
Group Share 1,049 565
Minority interests 12 22

*
Data restated for the change in accounting poééated to new consolidation standards and to IFRS 5

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB'deseted key financial information &

at and for the six month period ending 30 June 2615

n

Euros millions 30/06/2015 30/06/2014
Total Balance Sheet 567,265 572,657
(a) Fund for general banking risks --
(b) Minority interests 99 95
(c) Shareholders equity (Group 15,775 14,985
Share) and shareholder advances
Total (a) + (b) + (c) 15,874 15,080
Net income for year 535 525
Net banking income 2,986 2,120
Gross operating income 1,429 761
Group Share 527 519
Minority interests 8 6

“ Element B.12 is amended by the supplement dat&cBiber 2015 due to the inclusion of the finanstatements at 30 June 2015 of

Crédit Agricole CIB
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31 December 2014.]

There has been no significant change in the fimdnmi trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB since 30 June 2015 and no materiakasky change in its prospects since

Euros Thousands
Total Balance Sheet
Net result

Share capital

Result carried forward

Euros Thousands
Total Balance Sheet
Net result

Share capital

Result carried forward

since 31 December 2014.]

Euros

Total Balance Sheet
Net result
Share capital

Result carried forward

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FGslected key financial informatio
as at and for the period ending 31 December 2014

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FGslected key financial informatio
as at and for the sixth month period ending 30 R@1&*°

There has been no significant change in the fimrmi trading position of Crédit
Agricole CIB FG since 30 June 2015 and no matexiblerse change in its prospects

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FSalected key financial informatio
as at and for the period ending 31 December 2014

[The following table shows Crédit Agricole CIB FSalected key financial informatio

n
31/12/2013 31/12/2014
5,807,886 4,438,504
15 15
11 15
4] ]
n

30/06/2015 30/06/2014
3,450,672 4,840,484
0 0

15 15

16 15

=]

31/12/2013 31/12/2014
1,880,367,0

1,113,605,844 29
225,000 225,000
(25,207) (24,665)

543 626]

=]

> Element B.12 is amended by the supplement dateédic®ober 2015 due to the inclusion of the auditeahcial statements at 31

December 2014 of Crédit Agricole CIB FG

6 Element B.12 is amended by the supplement datedic®ober 2015 due to the inclusion of the finarsatements at 30 June 2015 of

Crédit Agricole CIB FG

" Element B.12 is amended by the supplement datedic®ober 2015 due to the inclusion of the auditeahcial statements at 31

December 2014 of Crédit Agricole CIB FS
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as at and for the sixth month period ending 30 Q& *

Euros 30/06/2015 30/06/2014
Total Balance Sheet 2,336,330,786 1,484,620,884
Net result 0 0

Share capital 225,000 225,000
Result carried forward (24,039) (24,665)

There has been no significant change in the fimdnmi trading position of Créd
Agricole CIB FS since 30 June 2015 and no matexierse change in its prospe
since 31 December 2014.]

t
Cts

% Element B.12 is amended by the supplement datedicZober 2015 due to the inclusion of the finaistatements at 30 June 2015 of

Crédit Agricole CIB FS



Section B — Issuer

B.13

Recent events
materially
relevant to
evaluation of
Issuer's
solvency

[1/Sale of NewedgeThe sale of 50% of Newedge to Société Générake cmanpleted
on 6 May 2014. The loss resulting from the fairueameasurement of the assets held
for sale was recorded in 2013 financial year foraamount of -€162 million. In 2014,
the completion of the sale generated no signifigeniact on Crédit Agricole CIB'
financial statements.

12}

2/Comprehensive Assessment: asset quality review drstress tests of European
banks by the European Central Bank As part of the implementation of the European
Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM), Crédit AgricGlmup was involved in the asset
quality review exercises (AQR) and forward-lookisgzess tests of the 130 largest
European banks. These exercises, carried out b¥tinepean Central Bank (ECB),
were based on the financial statements at 31 Deze®l3. The ECB's conclusions
were published on 26 October 2014. The assessnanperformed under the currgnt
EU Capital Requirements Regulation and Directiv&@RICRD 1V). It was aimed at
strengthening banks' balance sheets, enhancingptieancy and building confidence.
The review provided the ECB with substantial infatian on the banks that fall under
its direct supervision and furthers its efforts ¢oeate a level playing field fo

supervision. The results of the stress tests aselt apiality review for Crédit Agricole
S.A. group are available on the websites of the RCFhttps://acpr.banque
france.fr/international/les-grands-enjeux/stressstatml) and ECBH
(http://www.ech.europa.eu/ssm/assessment/html/iedextml). For Crédit Agricole
Group, the asset quality review covered all sigaifit portfolios both in France and
abroad, and confirmed the robustness of its firrstructure. The stress tests found
that Crédit Agricole Group is able to absorb sewv&ress without additional capital
requirements; the capital surplus compared with the threshold defined by the ECB puts
it in the top tier of eurozone banks. The asselityuzview performed by the ECB was
basically a regulatory exercise. However, the Groap taken the appropriate decisions
with regard to the potential impact on the finahagtatements, in accordance with
current accounting standards. The impacts are ratenmal in terms of amount and
presentation of Crédit Agricole S.A.'s and Crédifridole CIB's consolidated financial
statements.]Ifisert where Crédit Agricole CIB is the Issper

[Not Applicable. There have been no recent evemis are materially relevant to the
evaluation of the solvency of Crédit Agricole CIBHF
[Not Applicable. There have been no recent evemis are materially relevant to the
evaluation of the solvency of Crédit Agricole CIB.F

B.14

Dependency of
Issuer on other
entities within
the group

Please refer to Elements B.5 and B.16.
[Crédit Agricole CIB is dependent on the performanof its subsidiaries and
affiliates.][[Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agrice CIB FS] is dependent on Crédit
Agricole CIB.]
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B.15 Description of [The principal activities of Crédit Agricole CIBamainly:
Issuer's Financing: The financing business combines structured finranand commercia
principal banking in France and abroad. Banking syndicat®ninivolved in both of thes
activities activities.
Capital markets and investment banking:This business includes capital markets
brokerage, as well as investment banking.
Private banking: The private banking business provides individualestors with g
worldwide comprehensive wealth management sereicge:.
Discontinuing operations: The "discontinuing operations" perimeter has bestnup
during Crédit Agricole CIB's refocusing and devetemnt plan it adopted in the autumn
of 2008. It encompasses the operations which wesentost impacted by the crisis.
Since the new organisation of Crédit Agricole CIRsnestablished in the third quar
of 2012, following the adjustment plan, discontimgi activities now include the
correlation business, the CDO, CLO and ABS ponflithe equity derivatives
excluding corporates and convertibles, the exadi® erivatives and the impaired
portfolios of residential underlyings.]
[[Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agricole CIB FS]aries on business as a finar
company, issuing warrants, certificates and otimamntial instruments.]
B.16 Description of [Crédit Agricole S.A. is the immediate parent compaf Crédit Agricole CIB with &
whether the 97.33 per cent. stake.]
Issuer is directly
or indirectly [Crédit Agricole CIB is the immediate parent compaf Crédit Agricole CIB FG with
owned or a 99.9 per cent. stake and therefore controls CAéplicole CIB FG.]
controlled and
by whom and [Crédit Agricole CIB is the immediate parent compani Crédit Agricole CIB FS with
nature of such | 3 99 56 per cent. stake and therefore controlsiOgdcole CIB FS.]
control
B.17 Credit ratings [The current ratings for Crédit Agricole CIB arefaows:*

assigned to the
issuer or its debt
securities at the
request or with
the cooperation
of the issuer in
the rating
process

Short Term Debt ~ Senior Long Term

Debt

Rating Agency

Fitch Ratings Limited F1 A positive outlook
(Fitch)
Moody's Investors Prime-1 A2 positive outlook

Service Ltd Moody's)

Standard & Poor's Rating A-1
Services, a division of
Standard & Poor's Credit
Market Service Europe
Limited (S&P)

[Not applicable [Crédit Agricole CIB FG][Crédit Agole CIB FS] does not hav

A negative outlook

D

and

ce

[¢)

ratings.]

° Element B.17 is amended by the supplement datécBiber 2015 due to the change of Fitch Ratin@rétlit Agricole CIB
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[The credit ratings will be treated for the purposé Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009
credit rating agencies (as amended) @A Regulation) as having been issued |
S&P, Moody's and Fitch upon registration pursuantthte CRA Regulation. S&H
Moody's and Fitch are established in the EuropeainrJand have registered under f
CRA Regulation.]

[Not  applicable][The
[Fitch][Moody's][S&P]]]

Certificates have [not] beenated [fe] by

B.18

A description of
the nature and
scope of the
guarantee

[Not Applicable]

[The payment of all amounts due in relation to ffiledtes are irrevocably an
unconditionally guaranteed by Crédit Agricole ClBirguant to a guarantee dat
20 April 2015 (theGuarantee).]

B.19

Section B
information
about guarantor
as if it were
issuer of the
same type of
security that is
the subject of
the guarantee.
Therefore
provide such
information as
required for a
summary for
the relevant
annex.

[Not Applicable]

[Please see the Elements above in this SectiongBraang Crédit Agricole CIB, as
Guarantor.]

Section C — Securities

Cl1

Type and class
of Securities
being offered

Type:

The certificates Certificates) are issued by the Issuer with [no interest paydbéro
Coupon Certificateg][the amount (if any) payable as interest beingefd (a Fixed
Rate Certificate)][a floating rate (a Floating Rate Certificate)][linked to [a
combination of]l[a commodity/commodities/basket obmemodities][a benchmark
rate/benchmark rates/basket of benchmark rate§jpamate/FX rates/a basket of FX
rates][an index/indices/a basket of indices][a petpry index/proprietary indices/a
basket of proprietary indices][an inflation indefation indices/a basket of inflation
indices] [an exchange traded fund/exchange tradedsfa basket of exchange trad

funds] (aLinked Interest Certificate)] [and] [the amount payable on redemption bejng

[linked to [a combination of][a commodity/commoeéitibasket of commodities]]a
benchmark rate/benchmark rates/basket of benchmads][an FX rate/FX ratesja
basket of FX rates][an index/indices/a basket dfdes][a proprietary index/proprietary
indices/a basket of proprietary indices][an inBiatiindex/inflation indices/a basket of
inflation indices][an exchange traded fund/exchatrgded funds/a basket of exchange
traded funds] (aLinked Redemption Certificate)][and] [paid in instalments ah

ed
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Instalment Certificate)]. [The Certificates may also be referred to @orhmodity
Linked Certificates if linked to a commodity/commodities/basket
commodities]ndex Linked Certificates if linked to an index/indices/a basket
indices or a proprietary index/proprietary indiees/basket of proprietar
indices]Inflation Linked Certificates if linked to an inflation index/inflation indices
basket of inflation indicedf{X Linked Certificates if linked to an FX rate/FX rates
basket of FX ratesfate Linked Certificates if linked to a benchmark rate/benchmg
rates/basket of benchmark rat&JJF Linked Certificates if linked to an exchang
traded fund/exchange traded funds/a basket of egghdraded funddjjulti Asset
Basket Linked Certificates if linked to a combination of any of the abo
underlyings].]

[The amount payable (if any) [as interest] [and][l@n redemption] is dependent up
whether any credit event(sZedit Events) in respect of one or more reference enti
(Reference Entitie$ or one or more reference obligatioi®ef{erence Obligation$ in
respect of any such reference entities, as the owse be, have occurred (@redit
Linked Certificate).]

[The amount payable (if any) [as interest][and]jen] redemption] is dependent up
whether certain event8¢nd Eventg in respect of one or more bonds or the issuet
such bonds has occurredBand Linked Certificate).]

[Alternative currency conditions apply to the Cictites (each, anAlternative
Currency Certificate): the illiquidity, non-transferability or inconvaility of the
scheduled payment currency of the Certificates feag to postponement of paymert
under the Certificates, payment in an alternativerency or early redemption of th
Certificates.]
[The Certificates will be issued in uncertificatadd dematerialised book-entry for
(aDematerialised Certificate) [and] [will be issued in accordance with the Sisad
Financial Instruments Accounts Act (in Swedisag (1998:1479) om kontoféring 4
finansiella instrument and all other applicable Swedish laws, regulaioand
operating procedures applicable to and/or issuedthey Swedish central securitig
depository (in Swedishcentral vardepappersforvararé¢the Swedish CSD from time
to time (theSwedish CSD Rulek (each, aSwedish Certificatg][will be issued in
accordance with the Norwegian Securities Registet fn Norwegian: lov om
registrering av finansielle instrumenter av 5. j@P02 nr. 64 and all other Norwegia
laws, regulations and operating procedures appécttband/or issued by the relevg
Norwegian central securities depository (in Norwegi verdipapirregistey
(theNorwegian CSD from time to time (theNorwegian CSD Rule¥ (each, a
Norwegian Certificate)][will be issued in accordance with the Finnisht Aa the Book-
Entry System and Clearing Operations (in Finnishki arvo-osuusjérjestelmasta |
selvitystoiminnasta (749/20),2the Finnish Act on Book-Entry Accounts (in Fighi
Laki arvo-osuustileistd 827/199-s amended) and all other applicable Finnish |
regulations and operating procedures applicablentb/or issued by the Finnish cent
securities depository (theinnish CSD) from time to time (théFinnish CSD Ruleg
(each, &innish Certificate)]

| dentification Code:

The Certificates will be uniquely identified by tligne temporary ISIN Codee] and
thereafter by] [ISIN Codee] and the Common Code]] [ Insert other code
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Subject to compliance with all applicable laws,ulegions and directives, Certificate
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may be issued in any currency agreed between lénearg Issuer and the relevant deg
at the time of issue.

The Certificates will be denominated o] [(the Specified Currency)[, interest amounts

(if any) will be payable in4]] [and] [any amount payable on redemption willibge]].

C5 Description of | The free transfer of the Certificates is subjecthe selling restrictions of the Unite
restrictions on | States, the European Economic Area (including metldrance, Republic of Italy an
free Luxembourg), Guernsey and Switzerland)
transferability
of the
Securities

[Certificates offered and sold outside the Unitedt&s to non-U.S. persons in relian
on Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act 083L9nust comply with selling
restrictions.] [Certificates in registered form gatithin the United States to "Qualifig
Institutional Buyers" must comply with transfer trétions.]

[Certificates held in a clearing system must bedfarred in accordance with the rulg
procedures and regulations of that clearing sy$tem.

C.8 Description of | The Certificates are issued in a serieSéaie9 having terms and conditions relating

the rights
attaching to the
Securities
including
ranking and
including any
limitations to
those rights

amongst other matters, the following:

| nterest/Redemption:

The Certificates [do not] entitle the holder (eaziertificateholder) to the payment o
interest [as set out in more detail below in Elemn10 Only applicable if the
Certificates are debt securities for the purposkthe Prospectus Directiyg[C.15] [and
entitle the holder to receive a cash amount ornrédemption date [as set out in m@
detail in Element [C.9@nly applicable if the Certificates are debt setiad for the
purposes of the Prospectus Direc)ivE.15]].

[(Insert in respect of Credit Linked Certificates @himay be subject to physic
settlemeniThe Certificates may be settled by physical dejivef [specify applicablg
Deliverable Obligations (Deliverable Obligationg following the occurrence of
Credit Event. The amount of Deliverable Obligatiotsliverable on redemption
subject to adjustment in accordance with the teamd conditions applicable to th
Credit Linked Certificates.]

[(Insert in respect of Bond Linked Certificates whistay be subject to physic
settlemeniThe Certificates may be settled by physical dejivef [specify applicable
Bond (the Bondsg) following the occurrence of certain events, inihg on the
occurrence of a Bond Event. The amount of Bondiwelelble on redemption is subje
to adjustment in accordance with the terms anditiond applicable to the Bond Linke
Certificates.]
Redemption Method:
[Unless previously redeemed or purchased and dad¢celach Certificate will be [finally
redeemed by the Issuer, in cash, at its Final Rptlem Amount on ¢] (the
Redemption Datg](Delete in the case of Instalment Certificaigedeemed in
instalments (each, dnstalment Redemption Amounf) on the following datesspecify
instalment datds(each, aninstalment Date). The Instalment Amount in respect of
each Instalment Date i®][].][The aggregate outstanding nominal amounteispect of
the Certificates isd]][The aggregate amount of each Instalment Redem@imount is

ler
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[¢] (Insert in respect of Instalment Certificafefrhe Final Redemption Amount will
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be calculated in accordance with the [Standard ®Retlen][Performance
Redemption][Growth Redemption] method for determinihe amount due in respect
redemption of the Certificates (tiRedemption Method.[The aggregate outstandin
nominal amount in respect of early redeemed Ceatiéis [(theEarly Redemption
Amount)] will be calculated in accordance with the [Stard
Redemption][Performance Redemption][Growth Redeomptimethod for determinin
the amount due in respect of redemption of theif@aties.]

[Redemption Unwind Costswill be [[(a)][(notwithstanding that Redemption Wind
Costs is applicable)], (i) where the [Final RedemptAmount][Instalment Redemptio

Amount] is determined after the basis on which neglion is calculated has beg

switched in accordance withQjélete if no Payoff Features are applicable in espof
the Certificate¥ the applicable [Interest Payoff(s]] [and] [Reddinp Payoff[s]], an
amount, equal to such Certificate's pro rata portid the value (determined in th
currency in which the Certificates are denominat#fcBny losses, expenses and cost|
the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates who may énavedged the price risk of th
Certificates and any loss of tax relief or othex tonsequences of unwinding

adjusting any underlying or related swap agreemerdther hedging arrangements,
as calculated by the Calculation Agent in its sdikcretion or (i) where the basis ¢
which redemption is calculated has not been switdheaccordance with [{elete if no
Payoff Features are applicable in respect of thetifleates) the applicable [Interes
Payoff[s]] [and] [Redemption Payoff[s]], [zero (D][(b)][notwithstanding (a)][(i)] [in
the case of an Early Redemption Amount, an amaugntal to such Certificate's pro r3
portion of the value (determined in the currency vimich the Certificates ar
denominated) of any losses, expenses and codte tisguer and/or any of its affiliate
who may have hedged the price risk of the Certiéisand any loss of tax relief or oth
tax consequences of unwinding or adjusting any wyidg or related swap agreement
other hedging arrangements, as calculated by tleil@ton Agent in its sole discretior
[or][(ii)] in the case of [a Final Redemption Amdjfan Instalment Redemptio
Amount], zero (0)][zero (0)].]

[Standard Redemption means the Redemption Method corresponding to Haely
Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption AmountjiliRedemption Amount]. Th
[Early Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amt[Final Redemption
Amount] applicable to the Certificates is calcuthtes (i) the Redemption Unwind Cog
subtracted from (ii) the Reference Price multipligdthe Nominal Amount.

Nominal Amount means ¢].
Reference Pricemeans ¢].]

[Performance Redemptionmeans the Redemption Method corresponding toEheyf
Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption AmountjiliRedemption Amount]. Th
[Early Redemption Amount] [Instalment Redemption éunt] [Final Redemption
Amount] applicable to the Certificates is calcuthses (i) the Redemption Unwind Cog
subtracted from (ii) the result of the Referenced’added to the Redemption Pay
calculated using [Standard][Combination] RedempBayoff multiplied by the Nomina
Amount.

Nominal Amount means ¢].
Reference Pricemeans ¢].
[Standard][Combination] Redemption Payoff means ¢].]
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[Growth Redemption means the Redemption Method corresponding to Heely
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Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amountjgi Redemption Amount] is
Growth Redemption. The [Early Redemption Amoungfaiment Redemption
Amount][Final Redemption Amount] applicable to f@ertificates is calculated as (i) the

Redemption Unwind Costs subtracted from (ii) theule of the Reference Prig
multiplied by the Redemption Payoff calculated gsifiStandard][Combination
Redemption Payoff multiplied by the Nominal Amount.

Nominal Amount means ¢].

Reference Pricemeans ¢].

[Standard][Combination] Redemption Payoff mearnd.][ (Delete in the case @
Instalment Certificatds

[Instalment Certificates:

The Certificates will be redeemed in the InstalmB&demption Amounts on eaq
Instalment Date. Each Instalment Redemption Ameuithtbe calculated by reference {
the relevant Instalment Amount.

Options:

[Not Applicable. There are no Certificateholder iops in respect of thg
Certificates.][The Certificateholder has [a/an]jéstor Put Early Redemptio
Trigger][Investor Interest Switch Payoff Featurajjéstor Redemption Switch Payq

Performance Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature][GewoDecay Interest Switc
Option Payoff Feature][Flexi Option Interest Swit¢hayoff Feature][Reset Optid
Interest Payoff Feature][Reset Option RedemptioyoPd-eature] [(Jeach] as set out
more detail below).]

n
ff
Feature] [Shout Option Performance Lock-in Intereslyoff Feature] [Shout Option
h
n
n

[Not Applicable. There are no Issuer options inpeesd of the Certificates.][The Issu
has [an Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature]lssuér Redemption Switch Payqg

Feature] [Issuer Call Early Redemption Triggerijdb] as set out in more detail

below).]]
Early Redemption Triggers:

The Certificates [may] [may not] be redeemed ptrtheir stated maturity upon th
occurrence of certain events and/or at the optfchelssuer or Certificateholders, ea
anEarly Redemption Trigger [as set out below:]

[Issuer Call Early Redemption Triggeissuer Call Early Redemption Trigger |i

applicable. The Issuer may (at its option) giveig®to redeem all or some of tk
Certificates at the amount determined in accordanith the relevant Redemptio
Method (as defined below) (tHearly Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, i
any, on the relevant Early Redemption Date (bg#ji]

[Investor Put Early Redemption Triggemvestor Put Early Redemption Trigger |i

applicable. Upon expiry of an investor put notibe issuer will redeem in whole th
Certificates at the amount determined in accordanith the relevant Redemptio
Method (as defined below) (tHearly Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, i
any, on the relevant Early Redemption Date (be#iy]

[Knock-out Early Redemption TriggerKnock-out Early Redemption Trigger
applicable. If on [any Knock-out Observation Daftaf any time during the Knock-ot
Observation Period], a Knock-out Trigger occurse tksuer will redeem all of th
Certificates at the amount determined in accordanith the relevant Redemptio
Method (as defined below) (tHearly Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, i

e

er

ff

- 35 0 = on

any, on the Early Redemption Date (befimg).
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A Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger occurs if thénderlying Value of the
Underlying is [greater than][greater than or equal to][ldsmtor equal to][less than] th

Lower Limit [and][or][lower than][lower than or eqlito][greater than][greater than or

equal to] the Upper Limit.
Underlying Value is the price, level or rate of the relevant Ungeg (without regard tq

D

any currency of denomination of such price, levekate, as the case may be) at the

relevant time.

Underlying: Knock-out Upper Limit: Lower Limit:
Observation
[Date][Period]:

[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Callable Knock-out Early Redemption TriggeZallable Knock-out Early Redemptiq
Trigger is applicable. If, on a Callable Knock-gdbservation Date, a Callable Knoc
out Trigger occurs, the Issuer may (at its optigh)e notice to redeem all of th
Certificates at the amount determined in accordanith the relevant Redemptio
Method (as defined below) (tHearly Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, i
any, on the corresponding Early Redemption Dats¢ie]).

A Callable Knock-out Trigger occurs if the Underlying Value of the Underlyjing

[greater than or equal to][greater than][less tfles$ than or equal to] the Lower Limi

[and][or][lower than][lower than or equal to][greatthan][greater than or equal to] t
Upper Limit.

Underlying Value is the price, level or rate of the relevant Ungeg (without regard tq
any currency of denomination of such price, levekate, as the case may be) at
relevant time.

Underlying,: Callable Knock- Upper Limit: Lower Limit:
out Observation
Date(s):

[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Puttable Knock-out EarlfRedemption TriggerPuttable Knock-out Early Redemptiq
Trigger is applicable. If, on a Puttable Knock-@itservation Date, a Puttable Knog
out Trigger occurs, a Certificateholder may (atdfgion) give notice to the Issuer
redeem in whole the relevant Certificates at thewmh determined in accordance wi
the relevant Redemption Method (as defined beldk§ Early Redemption Amount)
with accrued interest, if any, on the correspondiagy Redemption Date (being]) in
which case the Issuer will so redeem the Certéisat
A Puttable Knock-out Trigger occurs if the Underlying Value of the Underlying
[greater than or equal to][greater than][less tbhaequal to][less than] the Lower Lim
[and][or][lower than][lower than or equal to][greatthan][greater than or equal to] t
Upper Limit.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Underyifwithout regard
to any currency of denomination of such price, lererate, as the case may be) at
relevant time.

Underlying,: Puttable Knock- Lower Limit; Upper Limit:

the

fo
th

it
he

the

out Observation
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Date:
[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Target Early Redemption Triggefarget Early Redemption Trigger is applicableorif
any Target Redemption Observation Date, the agtgegraount of interest paid on a
previous interest payment dates since the Issue iBareater than or equal to the Target
Level (being ararget Early Redemption Trigger Event), the Issuer will redeem all of
the Certificates at the amount determined in acomd with the relevant Redemptipn

Method (as defined below) (thearly Redemption Amount) on the corresponding
Early Redemption Date (beirig]).

Target Redemption Observation Date: Target Level:

[e] [®] per Calculation Amount, which shall
be multiplied by (i) the Global Certificate
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of
the Certificates represented by a global
Certificate), or (ii) the Calculation
Amount Factor (in respect of Certificateg
in definitive form).]

Calculation Amount: [e]

Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Certificates did by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Knock-out Multi Underlying Early Redemption Triggé¢nock-out Multi Underlying
Early Redemption Trigger is applicable. If on a kKkaut Observation Date, a Knock-
out Multi Underlying Trigger occurs, the Issuer lwiéddeem all of the Certificates at the
amount determined in accordance with the relevaadeRption Method (as defined
below) (theEarly Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the Early
Redemption Date (bein@]).
A Knock-out Multi Underlying Trigger occurs if the Basket Value is [greater
than][greater than or equal to][less than or edudjless than] the Lower Limi
[and][or][lower than][lower than or equal to][greatthan] [greater than or equal to] the
Upper Limit.
Basket Value on the relevant day is the sum of the individuautes of Leverage
multiplied by the Underlying Value of each Undenigiobserved on the relevant day.
Underlying Value is the price, level or rate of the relevant Unged (without regard tg
any currency of denomination of such price, levalabe, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.

Knock-out Lower Limit . Upper Limit .
Observation
Date(s):

[e] [e] [e]

I: Underlying;. Leverage:
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[e] [e] [e]]

Secured Certificates:

[Not applicable. The Certificates are not secured.]
[The Certificates arS&ecured Certificates in respect of which security has been created
by the [Issuer][§pecify (the Third Party Chargor )] over the Collateral Assets (as
defined below) in favour of Citicorp Trustee Comparmited as theSecurity Trustee
to hold on behalf of the Certificateholders andtaier other Secured Parties The
Collateral Assets will be held in a segregai€dllateral Account with Citibank
International plc (Luxembourg branch) @astodian or, potentially, in an account with [a
subcustodian or other third party selected by thst@ian.

The Collateral Assetscomprise §pecify.

[The Certificates are subject tollateral Monitoring which means that following a
Collateral Test Date (being ppecify relevant Collateral Test Dalgsthe [Issuer][Third
Party Chargor] may be required to deliver, or preculelivery of, additional of
replacement Collateral Assets to or from the Ceflt Account such that after
adjustment of the Collateral Assets, Bellateral Test will be satisfied. The Collateral
Test requires that (i) the Collateral Rules arésBatl and (ii) the value of the Collaterp
Assets is greater than or equal to fRequired Collateral Value (being Bpecify)
(taking into account any applicable haircut to lppled to the Collateral Assets). The
Collateral Rules are ppecify the applicable Collateral Rule€rédit Agricole CIB, in
its capacity as th€ollateral Manager is entitled to request from time to time and |on
behalf of the [Issuer][Third Party Chargor] that li@teral Assets [in the Collateral
Account are substituted with alternative Collatéxssets and that Collateral Assets] are
withdrawn from the Collateral Account, provided [@ither case] that following such
withdrawal [or substitution, as the case may beg]Collateral Test will be satisfied.]

[The Certificates are not subject @ollateral Monitoring which means that [the]
[neither the ][Issuer][ nor the ][Third Party Chardyis [not] obliged to deliver, of
procure delivery of, additional or replacement @w@tal Assets to or from the Collateral
Account following any change to the value of thdl&@eral Assets.]
The security over the Collateral Assets may onlyeb&rced in accordance with the
terms and conditions applicable to the SecuredifiCates (theSecured Certificate
Conditions), following a Secured Certificate Event of Defa(ds defined below) ang
following service by a Certificateholder of a natispecifying that the Certificates [are
immediately due and repayable at their Early Rediempg\mount][that such Certificate
will be subject to physical settlement in accordangith the Secured Certificate
Conditions] (aSecured Certificate Acceleration Event A Secured Certificate Event
of Default will occur if:

2]

1. there occurs a default in the payment of anyngipal or interest due on the
Certificates on the due date and such default coes for a specified time after
written notice is received by the Issuer;

2. [a notice is served following a failure to complith the provisions of the Secured
Certificate Conditions relating to Collateral Monitoring];

3. the Issuer becomes the subject of certain pbestinsolvency or administration
type proceedings; or

4. there is a failure by the Issuer [or Third Pattyargor] to comply with the securit
trust deed entered into by the Security Trustee thedIssuer in respect of the

<
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Secured Certificates (th®ecurity Trust Deed or the [pledge agreemertjjecify
other security documenbetween the [Issuer][Third Party Chargor], thestodian
and the Security Trust Deed in respect of the fimates (thePledge Agreement
(subject to any applicable grace period), the Sscufrust Deed or Pledg
Agreement terminates or any security granted byl$seer [or the Third Party
Chargor] ceases to be in full force and effectantain similar circumstances occur.

1%

On enforcement of the security over the Collat&sasets, the Certificates shall be
immediately due and payable at the Fair Market &aRedemption Amount and
Certificateholders shall be entitled to [receiveaamount equal to][delivery of Collateral
Assets in lieu of] the Fair Market Value Redemptfonount.]

The Fair Market Value Redemption Amount in respect of a Certificate will be, in
summary, equal to the fair market value of the ileste as at (or about) the date |of
early redemption, taking into account, without lation, the deduction of the Hedge
Amount [((n the case of Italian Listed Certificajesxcept for an early redemptian
following the occurrence of an Additional DisrupticEvent)][and the value of the
relevant Bond i the case of the Bond Linked Certificaiebut disregarding the
financial condition of the relevant Issuer [andioe Guarantor] and any collateral which
has been, or is required to be, delivered in cammewvith the Certificates.

Hedge Amountsrepresent the losses or costs (expressed as tiv@arimber) to the
relevant Issuer or any affiliate thereof that areurred or gains (expressed as a negative
number) of the relevant Issuer or any affiliater¢lod that are realised in unwinding any

hedging arrangements entered into in respect ofdleeant Certificates (whether by the
Issuer[, the Guarantor] or indirectly through afiliate).

[(In the case of the Bond Linked Certificates which $ecured Certificates and where
the Collateral Assets consist in whole or in pdrtlee relevant BondThe value of the
relevant Bond shall be determined by referencehto value at which the Security
Trustee, or a disposal agent on its behalf, is &dbléquidate or realise the Bond |n
accordance with the terms of the Certificates (adeducting any costs associated with
the relevant enforcement and liquidation and atgted fees or taxes).]f( the case o
Secured Certificatgsin the event of a default by the Custodian, [tldue of the
Bond][the Fair Market Value Redemption Amount] $t subject to a maximum of the
value of the amounts actually recovered from thet@ilian (or any agent, sub-custodian
or delegate thereof).] The Fair Market Value Red@mnpAmount shall not be a negatiye
number.

Payoff Features:
[Not Applicable. The Certificates are not subjecanhy features.]

[The Certificates have [several features][a fedtwvhich affect the [way interest i
calculated (arinterest Payoff or Linked Interest)][and the][way amounts payable ¢
redemption are calculated Redemption Payoff] [and] [when the Certificates redeem]
that apply, as set out below:

S @

Payoff Features which may apply to both interest and redemption amounts

[Additive Payoff FeatureAdditive Payoff Feature is applicable as multipayoff
features apply.]

is

[Currency Performance Payoff Featur€urrency Performance Payoff Feature
applicable. The relevant Linked Interest rate odétaption Payoff, or part thereof, wil
be adjusted by multiplying the relevant percenfagen amount equal to 1 (one) minus
the performance of the Reference Curreney) (fvith respect to a Strike Leveld]).]
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Payoff Features which may apply to interest amounts
[Investor Interest Switch Payoff Featurtnvestor Interest Switch Payoff Feature

applicable. All Certificateholders acting togetinesy at their option (once during the life

of the Certificates) elect to switch the basis omiclv interest is calculated from
calculation of the Linked Interest rate using Lidkimterest to (ii) calculation of the
Linked Interest rate using Linked Intergdty sending a notice on or prior to an Inveg
Interest Switch Expiry Date.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest,: Investor Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
o] [e] [e]l

[Issuer Interest Switch Payoff Featurdéssuer Interest Switch Payoff Feature
applicable. The Issuer may at its option (oncerduthe life of the Certificates) elect

switch the basis on which interest is calculateanf(i) calculation of the Linked Interest

rate using Linked Interesto (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rateing Linked
Interest, by sending a notice on or prior to an IssuerrbgeSwitch Expiry Date.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Issuer Interest Switch Expiry Date(s):
o] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Featuknock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature
applicable. The basis on which interest is caledatill automatically switch (once onl
during the life of the Certificates) from (i) calation of the Linked Interest rate usif
Linked Interest to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rateing Linked Interestif,
[on any Knock-out Interest Switch Observation Daiedny time during the Knock-ol
Interest Switch Observation Period], the Underlyigalue is within the Range.

The Underlyingo Value is within the Range if the Underlying Value of the
Underlyingco is [greater than or equal to][greater than][ldssni the Knock-out Lowe
Limit [and][or][lower than][lower than or equal fgjreater than] the Knock-out Upp
Limit.

The Underlyingo Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Brigingco (without
regard to any currency of denomination of sucheprievel or rate, as the case may
at the relevant time.

Underlyingo: Knock-out Lower Knock-out Upper Limit:
Limit:
[o] ] ]
Linked Linked Interest,: Knock-out Interest Switch Observation
Interest;: [Date(s)][Period(s)]:

o] o] [e]]

[Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Payoff Featufeock-out Basket Interest Switg
Payoff Feature is applicable. The basis on whitbrést is calculated will automatical
switch (once only during the life of the Certifiea) from (i) calculation of the Linke
Interest rate using Linked Interesob (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rateing
Linked Interest if, [on any Knock-out Basket Interest Switch Ohsdion Date][at any
time during the Knock-out Basket Interest Switchs@ivation Period], the Baskgt
Value is within the Range.

The Baskep Value is within theRangeif the Underlying Value of the Underlyipg is
[greater than or equal to][greater than][less thdmg Knock-out Basket Lower Lim

S
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[and][or][lower than][lower than or equal to][greatthan] the Knock-out Basket Upp
Limit.

Baskeko Value means the sum of the individual products of Legerand the
Underlying Value of each Underlyingbserved on the relevant date.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevahiderlying

(without regard to any currency of denominatiorsoth price, level or rate, as the case

may be) at the relevant time.

Knock-out Knock-out Linked Linked Knock-out Basket Interest
Basket Lower Basket Upper Interest;: Interest,: Switch Observation

Limit: Limit: [Dates(s)] [Period(s)]:

[o] [e] [e] [e] [e]

i Underlying;: Leverage:

1 [e] [e]]

[Target Interest Switch Payoff Featur@arget Interest Switch Payoff Feature

applicable. The basis on which interest is caledatill automatically switch (once onl
during the life of the Certificates) from (i) calation of the Linked Interest rate usi
Linked Interest to (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rateing Linked Interestif a

Target Interest Switch Event occurs.TArget Interest Switch Event occurs if the
payment of the interest amount on an interest payh&e results in the aggregate of
interest amounts (paid in respect of the aggregatstanding nominal amount of th
Certificates in the case of Certificates repregkige a global Certificate or the produ
of the Calculation Amount and the Calculation AmbEactor in respect of Certificate
in definitive form) paid up to and including theérest payment date is greater than
equal to the Aggregate Interest Amount Cap.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest,:  Aggregate Interest Amount Cap:

[e] [o] [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplibd (i) the
Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor (ispect of the
Certificates represented by a global Certificate)(i) the
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of Certifesatn definitive
form).

Calculation Amount: ¢]
Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggre
outstanding nominal amount of the Certificates did by the Calculation Amoun

S
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Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination

divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Shout Option Performance Lock-in Interest PayofitBee Shout Option Performang
Lock-in Interest Payoff Feature is applicable. Brtificateholders acting together m
request to fix the Underlying Value of each releévimderlying (being [e]), for the
purposes of the determination of the Linked Interate applicable to the Certificates f
the then current interest accrual period at theuSRption Performance Lock-in Levs
by delivering a notice on any date that falls iniaterest accrual period provided su
date is [10] Business Days prior to the end of thkevant interest accrual periq
(aShout Option Performance Lock-in Expiry Datg. The Issuer has the discretion
decline such request or provide the relevant Sption Performance Lock-in Leve
This option may be exercised once only in respketoh interest accrual period.

Each relevantUnderlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relev

ant

Underlying (without regard to any currency of demoation of such price, level or rat

D
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as the case may be) at the relevant time.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level means the Underlying Value of ea
relevant Underlying calculated in respect of any@®hOption Performance Lock-I
Expiry Date designated as a Shout Option Performdrark-In Date in the relevan
notice.]

[Chooser Decay Interest Switch Option Payoff Feateooser Decay Interest Swit¢

Option Payoff Feature is applicable. All Certifiehblders acting together may elect
defer the payment and calculation of interest upetivering a notice (eéDeferral

Option Exercise Noticg§ on or prior to a Deferral Option Exercise Datesigaating a|
deferral option effective date until (i) the Cedditeholders acting together, elect
receive payment of interest in respect of specilis@rest Determination Dates a
corresponding Interest Periods upon deliveringtecegaResumption Option Exercise
Notice) on or prior to a resumption option exercise ahsignating a resumption optig
reference date and specifying Interest Determinafdates in respect of which g
Certificateholders elect to receive payment ofrié (aResumption Option Specified
Effective Daté) or (ii) the last Interest Determination Date. Arerest Determinatio
Date can be specified as a Resumption Option Seéddifffective Date only once.

The Linked Interest rate applicable to the Cemifis shall be calculated (a) on ea
Interest Determination Date up to (but excludirty first deferral option effective da
and each subsequent Interest Determination Datehwlitis not been designated a
deferral option effective date, a resumption opti@ference date or specified

a Resumption Option Specified Effective Dateadnordance with the Linked Interest;

(b) on each deferral option effective date, as equal to 0; (c) in respect of each resumption

option reference date, the number, if any, of mresilnterest Periods corresponding
the Resumption Option Specified Effective DatescHj@el in the Resumption Optio
Exercise Notice for that resumption option refeeedate and (d) in respect of the |
Interest Determination Date, in accordance with ltheked Interest multiplied by a
amount equal to 1 plus the number of Interest Esrfor which no interest was pal
because the corresponding Interest DeterminatioresDwere designated as defe
option effective dates and not subsequently deségnas a resumption option referer
date or specified as a Resumption Option Speckféettive Date.

All Certificateholders acting together may elext(i) defer payment and calculation
interest on any Deferral Option Exercise Date dytihe life of the Certificates an
(ii) elect to receive payment of interest on angieption Option Exercise Date duri
the life of the Certificates.

Linked Interest: Deferral Option Exercise Resumption Option Exercise
Date(s): Date(s):
[e] o] o]

Interest Determination Date(s¥][
Interest Period(s):e[]

[Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Featuvemory Option Interest Switch Payq
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payablan interest payment date shall

equal to, if the interest amount payable in respdcan interest period calculated |i

accordance with the Linked Interest and applicabladitions, prior to application of th
Memory Option Interest Switch Payoff Feature isgfi¢ater than 0, then at the amo
payable in respect of the relevant interest pedaltulated using the Linked Intere
multiplied by 1 plus the number (if any) of previboaonsecutive interest periods f
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which no interest amount was paid, or (ii) lessitbaequal to 0, then 0.
Linked Interest: ¢]]

[Flexi Option Interest Switch Payoff Featur&iexi Option Interest Switch Payoff

Feature is applicable. All Certificateholders agttogether may elect to switch the basis

on which interest is calculated for an interestraacperiod from (i) calculation of the
Linked Interest rate using Linked Interesi (ii) calculation of the Linked Interest rate

using Linked Interest The Certificateholders may exercise this optiehtimes during
the life of the Certificates and after this the kad Interest rate will be automatical
switched to become the Flexi Interest Switch Fikede.

Linked Interest;: Linked Interest: Flexi Interest Switch Fixed Rate:
[e] [e] [e]]

[Pelican Option Interest Switch Payoff FeatuRelican Option Interest Switch Payq
Feature is applicable. The interest amount payablany interest payment date shall
subject to a maximum equal to the Cap. The amoiiranf) by which that interes
amount (prior to the application of the Cap) foriaterest period exceeds the Cap (
Interest Amount Excess Amoun} shall be notionally allocated to the Reservethd
amount calculated in respect of an interest peagivds rise to an amount that is less tk
the Cap (thénterest Amount Shortfall Amount), then the amount paid will be topp
up by the lesser of (i) the Interest Amount Shdrtfemount and (ii) the amoun
notionally credited to the Reserve (finéerest Amount Top Up Amount).

The Reservemeans a notional reserve which, at any time, eqtled aggregate g
each Interest Amount Excess Amount (if any) lessafigregate of each Interest Amo
Top Up Amount (if any), subject to a minimum of aef0). The amount notionall
credited to the Reserve shall not accrue or be ddeton accrue any interest. T
Certificateholders shall not be entitled to receawsy amount notionally credited to tf
Reserve after the payment of interest in respetiieofinal interest period.

Cap: [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multiplieg (i) the Global Certificate
Calculation Amount Factor (in respect of the Cardifes represented by a glok
Certificate), or (ii) the Calculation Amount Fact@n respect of Certificates in definitiv
form).

Calculation Amount: [e]
Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggre

outstanding nominal amount of the Certificates dftd by the Calculation Amount.

Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomina
divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Featur&s Dual Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature
applicable, interest amounts (if any) will be paidany one of the Interest Currencig
The amount paid will be calculated by [dividing][hiplying] the interest amoun
denominated ine] by the relevant Dual Currency (Interest) Exchampte on the
relevant Interest Determination Date.nflert for Italian Certificates This Dual
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature permits investtw invest in the Certificate
denominated ine] while they can only receive paymentsén (e.g. if they have acces
to [¢] denominated securities accounts only).]

Interest Currency(ies): Dual Currency (Interestyiiange Rate:

[] [e]
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Interest Determination Date(sk]]

[Credit Event Contingency Interest Switch Payoff tkiem Credit Event
Contingency Interest Switch Payoff Feature is ajablie. If the Calculation
Agent determines an event determination date hegried with respect to the
Reference Entity, interest shall cease to accrtie &ffect from (and including
the [interest payment date immediately precediraip ®yent determination date
(or, if such date occurs during the first intergsériod, the Intereg
Commencement Date)][the event determination da&teddit Events that may d@
may not happen in respect of the reference entidy mffect if interest ig
payable.

Reference Entity: [¢]

Credit Event(s): [*]

Interest Commencement Date[+]]
[Reset Option Interest Payoff FeatuReset Option Interest Payoff Feature is applieabl
All Certificateholders acting together may, witletbonsent of the Issuer, elect to swijch
the basis on which interest is calculated (up 4p tfimes during the life of the
Certificates) by sending a notice on or prior fReset Notice Date, subject to any further
exercise of the Reset Option Interest Payoff Featur

Reset Notice Date(s) o]]

= —

[Single Interest Payment Date Payoff Feate Single Interest Payment Date Payoff
Feature is applicable, notwithstanding that theeeraultiple interest payment dates the
sum of all interest amounts (if any) will be paid ] (the Single Interest Payment
Date). For the avoidance of doubt, Certificateholdeit mot be entitled to any interes
on any interest amount determined on an interetgrménation date for the relevant
interest period provided that it is paid on thegBrinterest Payment Date.]

—

Payoff Features which may apply to redemption amounts

[Global Cap Payoff FeatureGlobal Cap Payoff Feature is applicable. [The amqu
payable on final redemption will be reduced by @lebal Cap Amount.] [The amount
payable on each instalment redemption will be desd by, on the first Instalment Date,

the Global Cap Amount and on each subsequenalimsht Date, the Global Cdp
Amount minus the aggregate amount deducted on mwaqus Instalment Date pursuant
to this Global Cap Payoff Feature, subject to amim of zero (0).]
The Global Cap Amount is the greater of (i) 0 and (ii) the Strike Praugbtracted from
the sum of all amounts calculated as interestggpect of the aggregate nominal amount
in the case of Certificates represented by a gld@mtificate or the product of the
Calculation Amount and the Calculation Amount Fadto respect of Certificates in
definitive form) up to and including the relevaatiemption date.

Calculation Amount: [e]

[Instalment Date(s) [e]]

Strike Price: [e] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multipliég (i) the Global
Certificate Calculation Amount Factor (in respetttloe Certificates represented by a
global Certificate), or (ii) the Calculation AmouRactor (in respect of Certificates |n
definitive form).
Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Certificatesdtd by the Calculation Amount.

Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomin?tion
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divided by the Calculation Amount.]

[Global Floor Payoff FeatureGlobal Floor Payoff Feature is applicable. The anig
payable on [final redemption][the final Instalmédbate] will be increased by the Globjal
Floor Amount.

The Global Floor Amount is the greater of (i) 0 and (ii) the sum of all amts
calculated as interest (in respect of the principggregate amount in the case|of
Certificates represented by a global Certificat¢herproduct of the Calculation Amoupt
and the Calculation Amount Factor in respect oftifieates in definitive form) up to an
including the relevant redemption date subtractedhfthe Strike Price.

=

[Instalment Date(s) [e]]

Strike Price: ¢] per Calculation Amount, which shall be multipliéy (i) the Global
Certificate Calculation Amount Factor (in respetttloe Certificates represented by a
global Certificate), or (ii) the Calculation AmouRactor (in respect of Certificates |n
definitive form).

Calculation Amount: [e]

Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the specified denomination
divided by the Calculation Amount

Global Certificate Calculation Amount Factor means a number equal to the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Certificates did by the Calculation Amount.
Calculation Amount Factor means a number equdiéspecified denomination divided
by the Calculation Amount.]

[Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Featufes Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff
Feature is applicable, the amount payable on redempill be payable in any one ¢
the applicable Redemption Currencies. The amournt pell be calculated by
[dividing][multiplying] the relevant redemption amot denominated irffe] by the
relevant Dual Currency (Redemption) Exchange Ratthe Redemption Determinatian
Date. [(nsert for Italian Certificates This Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature
permits investors to invest in the Certificates waimated in[e] while they can only
receive payments ip] (e.g. if they have access [l¢§ denominated securities accounts

only).]

=

Redemption Dual Currency  Redemption
Currenc(y)(ies): (Redemption) Determination Date:
Exchange Rate:

[Redemption Date][Instalment [e] [e]
Date]:
[Early Redemption Date:] [e] [e]]

[Investor Redemption Switch Payoff Featutavestor Redemption Switch Payaqff
Feature is applicable. All Certificateholders agtitogether may at their option (once
during the life of the Certificates) elect to switthe basis on which the amount payable
on [final redemption][each subsequent instalmemtengption] is calculated from (i
calculation of the Redemption Payoff using LinkeddBmption, to (i) calculation of
the Redemption Payoff using Linked Redemptidoy sending a notice on or prior to an
Investor Redemption Switch Expiry Date.

Linked Redemption: Linked Redemption,: Investor Redemption Switch

Expiry Date(s):
[e] o] [e]]
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[Issuer Redemption Switch Payoff Featussuer Redemption Switch Payoff Feature
applicable. The Issuer may at its option (oncerduthe life of the Certificates) elect
switch the basis on which the amount payable amalfredemption][each subseque
instalment redemption] is calculated from (i) cédtion of the Redemption Payoff usin
Linked Redemption to (ii) calculation of the Redemption Payoff usingnked
Redemptiop, by sending a notice on or prior to an Issuer Regmn Switch Expiry
Date.

Linked Redemption: Linked Redemption,: Issuer Redemption Switch Expiry
Date(s):
[e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff Featuf@ock-out Redemption Switch Payg
Feature is applicable. The basis on which the ampayable on [final redemption][ead
subsequent instalment redemption] is calculated avitomatically switch (once onl
during the life of the Certificates) from (i) calation of the Redemption Payoff usir
Linked Redemption to (i) calculation of the Redemption Payoff usindnked
Redemption if, [on any Knock-out Redemption Switch Observatidate][at any time
during the Knock-out Redemption Switch Observat@niod] the Underlying, Value is
within the Range.

2 IS

nt

The Range is where the Underlying Value is [greater than or equal to][greater

than][less than] the Knock-out Lower Limit [and][dower than][lower than or equa
to][greater than] the Knock-out Upper Limit.

The Underlyingko Value reflects the price, level or rate of the Undentyihn (without
regard to any currency of denomination of sucheyrievel or rate, as the case may
at the relevant time.

Underlyingko: Knock-out Lower Limit: Knock-out Upper Limit:
] [e] [e]
Linked Redemption: Linked Redemption,: Knock-out Redemption Switch

Observation [Date(s)][Period(s)]:
[e] [o] [e]]

[Knock-out Basket Redemption Switch Payoff Featikirock-out Redemption Switc
Payoff Feature is applicable. The basis on whice #mount payable on [fing
redemption][each subsequent instalment redempii®rjalculated will automatically
switch (once only during the life of the Certifiea) from (i) calculation of thg
Redemption Payoff using Linked Redemptidn (ii) calculation of the Redemptig
Payoff using Linked Redemptignf, [on any Knock-out Basket Redemption Swit
Observation Date][at any time during the Knock-dBésket Redemption Switc
Observation Period] the BaskgtValue is within the Range.

The Baske{, Value is within theRangeif the Underlying Value of the Underlyipg is
[greater than or equal to][greater than][less thdmg Knock-out Basket Lower Lim
[and][or][lower than][lower than or equal to][greatthan] the Knock-out Basket Upp
Limit.

Baskeko Value means the sum of the individual products of Legerand the
Underlying Value of each Underlyingbserved on the relevant date.

The Underlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevahiderlying

=
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(without regard to any currency of denominatiorsoth price, level or rate, as the Case
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may be) at the relevant time.

Knock-out Knock-out Linked Linked Knock-out Basket Redemption
Basket Lower Basket Upper Redemption;: Redemptior, ~ Switch Observation [Date(s)]
Limit: Limit: : [Period(s)]:

[e] [o] [o] [o] [o]

i Underlying;: Leverage:

o] [e] [e]l

[Shout Option Performance Lock-in Redemption Payeéiture Shout Option|
Performance Lock-in Redemption Payoff Feature ispliegble. All
Certificateholders acting together may requestixatfe Underlying Value o
each relevant Underlying, for the purposes of theteminination of the
Redemption Payoff applicable to the Certificatesr@spect of the amour
payable on [final redemption][the relevant instattneedemption] for the the
immediately following Redemption Determination Dade the Shout Optio
Performance Lock-in Level by delivering a notice mnbefore any date that
not less than [10] Business Days prior to the mWRedemption Determinatid
Date Shout Option Performance Lock-in Expiry Date. The Issuer has th
discretion to decline such request or provide tkeéevant Shout Optio
Performance Lock-in Level. This option may be eigad once only in respe
of each Redemption Determination Date in respedhefamount payable g
[final redemption][the relevant instalment rederopti

Each relevantnderlying Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relev
Underlying (without regard to any currency of deiattion of such price, leve
or rate, as the case may be) at the relevant time.

Shout Option Performance Lock-in Level means the Underlying Value
each relevant Underlying calculated in respectnyflausiness day designated
the relevant notice which shall be on or priorhie Bhout Option Performan
Lock-in Expiry Date.

Redemption Determination Date(s: [e]

Underlying: [e]]

[Reset Option Redemption Payoff FeatuReset Option Redemption Payq
Feature is applicable. All Certificateholders agtitogether may, with th
consent of the Issuer, elect to switch the basis/oich the amount payable ¢
[final redemption][each subsequent instalment rgatem] is calculated (up t
[¢] times during the life of the Certificates) by damy a notice on or prior to
Reset Notice Date, subject to any further exeraethe Reset Optiol
Redemption Payoff Feature.
Reset Notice Date(s)*]]
Ranking (status):

The Certificates constitute direct, unsubordinafadd unsecured] obligations of tk
Issuer.

Guarantee

The [Certificates are not guaranteed by any guarfipayment of principal and intere
in respect of the Certificates is unconditionallgdairrevocably guaranteed by tk
Guarantor pursuant to the Guarantee].

Redemption following a Scheduled Payment Currency Cessation Event

A Scheduled Payment Currency Cessation Evemheans that the Specified Curren

nt
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(or, in the case of Certificates to which the D@Qatrency (Interest) Payoff Feature or the

Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature applie Interest Currency or th

e

Redemption Currency as the case may be) ceasesigba¢ any time as a lawfy
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currency for any reason whatsoever, as determigetthdo Calculation Agent in its sol
and absolute discretion.

Following the occurrence of a Scheduled Paymentregbay Cessation Event, the

relevant Issuer, in its sole and absolute disanetioay redeem all, but not some only,
the Certificates early on a date to be specifiedth®y Issuer, each Certificate bei
redeemed at its Fair Market Value Redemption Amalaniominated at any curren
selected by the Calculation Agent or the curreheyntadopted in France.

Redemption for FATCA Withholding:

[The Issuer may redeem any or all FATCA Affectedtifieates and, in circumstances
where the Issuer elects not to redeem a FATCA AdfdCertificate, the holder of such

D
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FATCA Affected Certificate can subsequently requbstIssuer to redeem such FATCA

Affected Certificate.][The Issuer will redeem alAFCA Affected Certificates.] The
Certificates will be redeemed at the Fair Marketu#gaRedemption Amount togeth
(if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but extihg) the date of redemption.

A FATCA Affected Certificate means a Certificate in respect of which (i) theubs

[or Guarantor (if it were required to make a paymemder the Guarantee)] has or will
become obliged to make any withholding or deductpmsuant to an agreement

described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal/éhue Code of 1986, as amended

(the Code) or any withholding or deduction otherwise impogmasuant to Section

1471 through 1474 of Code, or any fiscal or reguiatiegislation, rules or practices
adopted pursuant to any intergovernmental agreeergated into in connection with the

implementation of such sections of the Code ands(ich obligation cannot be avoid
by the Issuer [or the Guarantor] taking reasonat#asures available to it.]

[Redemption for |llegality and Force Majeure:

The Issuer has the right to terminate the Certidisan the case of illegality or forge

majeure.]
[Clean-up Call Option
Clean-up Call Option is applicable. The Certificataay be redeemed early in who,

le,

but not in part, at the option of the Issuer if dggregate nominal amount outstanding of

the Certificates is equal to 10 per cent. or laéss tthe aggregate nominal amount of

Certificates on the Issue Date, as determined byGhlculation Agent in its sole and

absolute discretion.]

[Additional Disruption Events: [(this may apply to Linked Interest Certificates, Kad
Redemption Certificates and will apply to Credinked Certificates, Bond Linkeg
Certificates and Certificates to which the Dual @uncy (Interest) Payoff Feature, th
Dual Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature or therréncy Performance Payo
Feature applieg

Upon the occurrence of an additional disruptionngvihe Certificates may be subject
adjustment or may be early redeemed at [the Faik&&/alue Redemption Amount][g
redeemed on the redemption date at an amount dasstnby the Calculation Agen
representing the fair market value of each Cediéictaking into account the addition
disruption event f( respect of Certificates which are not Italiarsted Certificatesless
the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of imding any underlying related hedgir
arrangements]] (th€alculated Additional Disruption Amount) plus accrued interes|
at a rate determined by the Calculation Agent, feord including the date the Calculat
Additional Disruption Amount is determined by thal€ulation Agent to but excludin

the
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the redemption date of the Certificates].
The occurrence of a [hedging disruption][,][or]laange of law][or][an increased cost

hedging] affecting the Issuer[, the Guarantor] and/any of [its][their] respective

affiliates [(as the case may be)], as determinethbyCalculation Agent or the Issuer
the case may be), will constitute an additionatugion event.

[Market Disruption Events: [(this only applies to Linked Interest Certificatasld.inked
Redemption Certificates, except for Certificateat thre linked to Inflation Indice
and/or Benchmark Rates only, and will also appieeand Certificates to which the Du
Currency (Interest) Payoff Feature, the Dual Cungr(Redemption) Payoff Feature
the Currency Performance Payoff Feature applies

With respect to 4] (the Underlying), upon the occurrence of [a market disruption €v

[a disrupted day][a market disruption event witepect to one or more components| of

the multi-asset basketh{s only applies to Multi-Asset Basket Linked Giegted, the

relevant observation date relating to [each affectmponent in the multi-asset basket]
[the Underlying] may be subject to postponemerd,rilevant payment date for interest

or redemption may be subject to postponement, #héfiCates may be early redeem
or the Calculation Agent may determine [the fairrke& value of the relevant [affected
component] [Underlying]] [its good faith estimatd the level of the [index] [or]
[proprietary indexthis only applies to Index Linked Certificafels

[Other events that have a material effect on the Certificates: [(this only applies tq
Linked Interest Certificates and Linked Redemptantificates and will also apply t
and Certificates to which the Dual Currency (Int)e Payoff Feature, the Dual
Currency (Redemption) Payoff Feature or the Cunelerformance Payoff Feature
applieg]
If any other event, other than a [disrupted daypiket disruption event] and 4§
additional disruption event, occurs which the Clltan Agent determines, acting |n
good faith, has a material effect on the Certifisatthe Certificates may be subject|to
adjustment or may be early redeemed at the Faikdtidalue Redemption Amount.

O

=)

[Early redemption of Leveraged CLCs: [(this only applies to Leveraged CLTs

[Fair Market Value Trigger Fair Market Value Trigger is applicable. The Warates
may be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at fiteo of the Issuer if the Fair Market
Value Redemption Amount of a Certificate would Bssuming that the Certificates
would be redeemed in full on such date at the Mairket Value Redemption Amount,
less than ¢] (being theFair Market Value Trigger) , as determined by the Calculatipn
Agent in its sole and absolute discretion.]

[Reference Entity Spread TriggeReference Entity Spread Trigger is applicablee Th
Certificates may be redeemed in whole, but notart,at the option of the Issuer if the
[Reference Entity Spreadn(the case of a Single Reference Entity L@eighted
average Reference Entity Spread in respect ohalf¢levant Reference Entitiga ¢he
case of an Nth-to-Default CLC or a Linear BasketQlJLexceeds ¢] (being the
Reference Entity Spread Triggej as determined by the Calculation Agent in itesol
and absolute discretion. The Reference Entity $prealetermined in accordance with
the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates affi@cts the cost of a credit default swap
on the Reference Entity.]

TheReference Entity(ies)[is][are] [¢]]

[Reference Entity TriggeReference Entity Trigger is applicable. The Giedies may
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be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the optd the Issuer if the number
Reference Entities in respect of which a CreditriEveas occurred exceede] [(being
the Reference Entity Trigger), as determined by the Calculation Agent in itk ssind
absolute discretion.

Credit Event(s) means ¢]]

The Reference Entity(ies)[is][are] [e]]

[Early redemption of BLCs:

Fair Market Value TriggerFair Market Value Trigger is applicable. The @adtes may
be redeemed in whole, but not in part, at the opdibthe Issuer if the Fair Market Vall
Redemption Amount of a Certificate would be, assgrthat the Certificates would K

redeemed in full on such date at the Fair Markdti&/&kedemption Amount, less than

[#] (being theFair Market Value Trigger) , as determined by the Calculation Agent
its sole and absolute discretion.]

nf

e
e
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[Redemption following a Merger Event: [(this only applies to Credit Linked Certificats
in relation to which Credit Linked Condition 2.8g&emption following a Merger Even
is specified to app)yand Bond Linked Certificates in relation to whicler8l Linked
Condition 2.4 (Redemption following a Merger Evesigpecified to applly.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a mergesné has occurred, the Certificat
may be early redeemed at the Fair Market Value Retien Amount.

A merger event will occur if the Issuer [or the @r#tor] consolidates or amalgamat
with, or merges into, or transfers all or substdihtiall of its assets to, a reference ent
the Issuer [or the Guarantor as applicable,] [er @uarantor] and a reference entity
the Issuer and a reference entity become affiliates

Withholding tax:

Certificateholders must pay all specified expemsé&ging to the Certificates.

[Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor shall][Theués shall not] be liable for g
otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholdorgother payment which may arise
a result of the ownership, transfer, exercise doreement of any Certificates and

PS
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payments made by the Issuer [or the Guarantorl]blainade subject to any such tax,

duty, withholding or other payment which may beuiegd to be made, paid, withheld
deducted.

Meetings:
The terms of the Certificates contain provisions dalling meetings of holders of th
Certificates to consider matters affecting theiteiasts generally. These provisio
permit defined majorities to bind all holders, inding holders who did not attend al
vote at the relevant meeting and holders who votesd manner contrary to the relevg
majority.

Governing L aw:
The Certificates are governed by English law.

or
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C.9

Interest,
maturity and
redemption
provisions,
yield and
representation

[Not Applicable]
[Please also refer to Element C.8.
[Fixed Rate Certificates:

The Certificates are Fixed Rate Certificates. Tleetiicates bear interest frone] (the
Interest Commencement Datg at a rate of 4] per cent. per [specify period] payal
[annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in arremn [e] in each year.]

e
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of the security-
holders

[An indication of yield:

The yield for the Fixed Rate Certificates will s pn [e] (the Issue Datg [and will be
calculated on the basis of][ This is not an indication of future yield.]

[Floating Rate Certificates:

[The Certificates are Floating Rate Certificatelse Tertificates will bear interest on t
same basis as the floating rate under a notioriatdst rate swap transaction, or

reference to [LIBOR, EURIBOR [other]]. The Certdies will bear a floating rate ¢
interest from [p] (the Interest Commencement Date of [[[e](the [ISDA

Rate][ Designated Maturity][ Reset

Date])][[the offered quotation][the arithmetic mean thfe offered quotations] for €]

(the Reference Ratg]] [+/-] [ o] per cent.] [(subject to a [minimum][maximum] rabé
[®])] per [specify period] payable [annually/semi-aaity/quarterly/monthly] in arreal
on [e] in each year.]

[Zero Coupon CertificatesThe Certificates are Zero Coupon Certificates dondnot
bear interest. The accrual yield for Zero Couponmtifizates will be o] (specify any
change to the Accrual Yield over tijjand will be calculated on the basis ef][ This is
not an indication of future yield.]

[Linked Interest CertificatesThe Certificates are Linked Interest Certificateat are
[Multi-Asset Basket Linked Certificates that are a combination of] [Commaodi

Linked Certificates][Index Linked Certificates][lation Linked Certificates][Rate

Linked Certificates][FX Linked Certificates][ETF hked Certificates]. The Linke
Interest Certificates will bear interest on theibad the Linked Interest (as set out
more detail in C.10).]

[Credit Linked CertificatesThe amount payable (if any) as interest on thdiiates
and the amount payable [and/or the Deliverable gakibns to be delivered] o
redemption of the Certificates is dependent uporetidr any Credit Event(s) i
respect [the reference entity]lany reference it reference entity being th
[first][second][third][e][th] reference entity being subject to the ocenne of a Credi
Event] or one or more obligations in respect bé[teference entity][any such referen
entities], as the case may be, have occurred.

Credit Event(s) means ¢]]
[Linear Basket CLCs (other than Leveraged CLTHE conditions relating to interest

any) payable under the Certificates and the redempimount apply to each Certificate

with respect to each Reference Entity separatediytarsuch Certificate'pro rata share

of the relevant Floating Rate Payer Calculation Antaelating to such reference entit
Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculadn Amount(s):
] [e]]

[Linear Basket CLCs that are also Leveraged CLE=ch Certificate will be redeeme
upon the first occurrence of the satisfaction of tonditions to settlement (whig
include the occurrence of a credit event) with eespo any reference entity.]

Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculadn Amount(s):
] [e]]
[Principal Protected CLCsUpon the satisfaction of the conditions to settat (which

include the occurrence of a credit event) in respea Reference Entity, each Certifica
will be redeemed save that the Floating Rate P&ggulation Amount will be differen

ne
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to the remaining outstanding nominal amount ofGleetificates.
Reference Entity(ies): Floating Rate Payer Calculadn Amount(s):
o] [e]]

[Fixed Recovery CLC#4f the conditions to settlement (which include thccurrence of

credit event) with respect to a Reference Entigysatisfied, the redemption amount wi

be calculated by reference to the Fixed RecovergdPéage relating to such Reference

Entity.
Reference Entity(ies): Fixed Recovery Percentage(s)
o] [e]]

[Bond Linked CertificatesThe amount payable (if any) as interest on thdifates
and the amount payable [and/or the bonds to bevetell] on redemption of th
Certificates is dependent upon whether any bonatésjein respect of one or more
the bonds has occurred.

Bond(s): Bond Nominal Amount(s):

[e] [o]]

[Basket BLCsThe conditions relating to interest (if any) pblgunder the Certificate

and the redemption amount apply to each Certifioaith respect to each bon

of

o O

separately and to such Certificatete rata share of the relevant Bond Nominal Amount

relating to such bond.
Bond(s): Bond Nominal Amount(s):

[e] [e]]

[Interest Periods and Rates of Interest:

ThelInterest Determination Datesfor the Certificates ares].

The Interest Payment Datedfor the Certificates ares].

ThelInterest Periodsfor the Certificates ares].

Thelnterest Period Datesfor the Certificates ares].

The Calculation Agent for the Certificates ise][Crédit Agricole CIB].]

[The interest rate payable in respect epdcify relevant Interest Periddsvill be
determined in the sole discretion of the Calcutad@ent through the use of straight li
linear interpolation].

Redemption:
[The Certificates are scheduled to redeemedrb}y payment of the Issuer oé].]

Representation of Certificateholders:
There is no trustee or any other representativ@esfificateholders.

[(Delete if the Certificates are not secuyd&ithe Security Trustee has been appointe
hold the security created in respect of the CalldteAssets on trust for th
Certificateholders and the other Secured Parties.]]

ne

d to

C.10

Derivative
component in
interest
payments

[Not Applicable]

[Linked Interest Certificateg he Certificates arkinked Interest Certificates, they will

bear interest on the basis of theked Interest Rate which is calculated in accordan
with the below and expressed as a percentage, whetgnderlying Value reflects [the
price, level or rate of [the][the relevantihderlying (being [e]) (without regard to any
currency of denomination of such price, level deras the case may be) at the reley
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time on []] [the[average value][minimum value][maximum valjod
Underlying][change in value of the Underlying] obsed by the Calculation Agent ove

[specify relevant datgs

An interest amount calculated in accordance withnéerest Payoff is &inked Interest

Amount)

(Replicate formulae, relevant value(s), relevantkeih Interest description and oth
related provisions from the terms and conditionthefCertificates.

[[®] (insert name of standard or combination inteydstapplicable for Interest Accrual

Period je].]
[Combination Capitalisation Intergst

[Combination Complex Digital Intergst
[Combination Division Interept

[Combination Multiplication Interept
[Combination Ratchet Interdst

[Combination Range Interdst

[Combination Resettable Range Intefest
[Combination Snowrange Intergst
[Combination Subtract Intergst
[Combination Maximum Intergst
[Combination Minimum Interédst
[Combination Complex Digital Basket Intefest
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Interést
[Combination Ladder Ratchet Intergst
[Combination Rainbow Performance Intefest
[Standard Fixed Interelst

[Standard Floating Interet

[Standard Asian Option Intergst

[Standard Collar Intere}t

[Standard Floater Interept

[Standard Floored Floater Interdst

[Standard Inverse Floater Intergst

the

D
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[Standard Strangle Interdst

[Standard Alternative Basket Interest

[Standard Strangle Basket Intefest

[Standard Option Basket Intergst

[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Intdrest
[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Intgrest
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Intergst

[Standard Volbond Interdst

[Standard Year on Year Participation Intefest
[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Basket Isilere
[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Basket Isfere
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket Intefest
[Standard Volbond Basket Interest

[Standard Year on Year Participation Basket Intdrest
[Standard Fixed Digital Intereft

[Standard Fixed-to-Floating Interdst

[Standard Range Accrual Intergst

[Standard Resettable Range Accrual Intgrest
[Standard 3D Range Accrual Interest

[Standard Total Range Accrual Intefest

[Standard Fixed Digital Basket Intergst

[Standard Power Interést

[Standard Dual Range Accrual Interpest

[Standard Trend Participation Intergst

[Standard Lookback Trend Participation Intefest
[Standard Average Trend Participation Intetest

[Standard Trend Participation Basket Intefest
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[Standard Average Trend Participation Basket Intgres
[Standard Multi Fixed Digital Interept

[Standard Digital to Participation Interest

[Standard Knock-out Range Accrual Intefest
[Standard Product Basket Intergst

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Intergst

[Standard Fixed Range Accrual Intefest

[Standard ABF Interept

[Standard Worst of Interdst

[Standard Annualised Performance Intefest

[Standard Rainbow Performance Intefgst

2d

c.11 An indication [Application has been made by the Issuer (or orbékalf) for the Certificates to b
as to whether | admitted to trading on [the Irish Stock Exchangegulated market][the Regulate
the securities Market Regulierter Markt of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange][the Regulatedridda
offered are or maintained by Euronext Paris S.A.][Electronic Sémed Derivatives Market of Bors
will be the Italiana S.p.A. Ifalian Listed Certificates)][ o][ with effect from [e].] [The Certificates
object of an are not expected to be admitted to trading.]
application for | Distribution:
admission to | [The Certificates will be offered to the publicfie].]
trading

C.15 Description of | [Not Applicable]

how the value
of your
investment is
affected by the
value of the
underlying
assets

[Credit Linked CertificatesThe Certificates are Credit Linked Certificates.

The amount payable (if any) as interest on theif@@tes and the amount payal
[and/or the deliverable obligations to be delivéred redemption of the Certificates
dependent upon whether any credit event(s) in césfthe reference entity][an
reference entity][a reference entity being thesfflsecond][third]p][th] reference entity
being subject to the occurrence of a Credit Eventhne or more obligations in respe

of [the reference entity][any such reference egdijtias the case may be, have occurrad.

Credit Event(s) means ¢]]
[Bond Linked Certificated he Certificates are Bond Linked Certificates

The amount payable (if any) as interest on theif@@tes and the amount payah
[and/or the bonds to be delivered] on redemptiothef Certificates is dependent up
whether any bond event(s) in respect of one or rabtkke bonds has occurred.]

[Linked Interest Certificated he Certificates arkinked Interest Certificates, they will
bear interest on the basis of theked Interest Rate which is calculated in accordan
with the below and expressed as a percentage, whetdnderlying Value reflects [the
price, level or rate of [the][the relevantihderlying (being [e]) (without regard to any
currency of denomination of such price, level deras the case may be) at the reley
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time on []] [the [average value][minimum value][maximum va]lof the
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Underlying][change in value of the Underlying] obsed by the Calculation Agent ovg

[specify relevant datgs

An interest amount calculated in accordance withnéerest Payoff is &inked Interest

Amount)

(Replicate formulae, relevant value(s), relevantkeuh Interest description and oth
related provisions from the terms and conditionthefCertificates.

[#] (insert name of standard or combination inteyastapplicable for Interest Accrual

Period e].

[Combination Capitalisation Interdst
[Combination Complex Digital Interdst
[Combination Division Interepst
[Combination Multiplication Interekt

[Combination Ratchet Interdst

[Combination Range Interdst
[Combination Resettable Range Intefest
[Combination Snowrange Intergst
[Combination Subtract Interdst

[Combination Maximum Interdst
[Combination Minimum Interést

[Combination Complex Digital Basket Intefest
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Intergst
[Combination Ladder Ratchet Interpst
[Combination Rainbow Performance Intetest
[Standard Fixed Intereft

[Standard Floating Interelt
[Standard Asian Option Intergst

[Standard Collar Intere$t

[Standard Floater Interekt

[Standard Floored Floater Intergst

[Standard Inverse Floater Intergst

[Standard Strangle Intergst

[Standard Alternative Basket Interest

[Standard Strangle Basket Intefest

[Standard Option Basket Intergst

[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Intgrest
[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Intgrest
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Intergst

[Standard Volbond Interdst

[Standard Year on Year Participation Intefest
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[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Basket Isilere
[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Basket Iefere
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket Intefest

[Standard Volbond Basket Interest

[Standard Year on Year Participation Basket Intdrest
[Standard Fixed Digital Interept

[Standard Fixed-to-Floating Intergst

[Standard Range Accrual Interst

[Standard Resettable Range Accrual Intdrest

[Standard 3D Range Accrual Interest

[Standard Total Range Accrual Intefest

[Standard Fixed Digital Basket Intergst

[Standard Power Interest

[Standard Dual Range Accrual Interest
[Standard Trend Participation Intergst
[Standard Lookback Trend Participation Intetest
[Standard Average Trend Participation Intefest
[Standard Trend Participation Basket Intetest
[Standard Average Trend Participation Basket Intgres
[Standard Multi Fixed Digital Interept

[Standard Digital to Participation Interglst
[Standard Knock-out Range Accrual Intefest
[Standard Product Basket Interpst

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Intergst

[Standard Fixed Range Accrual Intefest
[Standard ABF Interept

[Standard Worst of Intergst

[Standard Annualised Performance Intefest
[Standard Rainbow Performance Intetgst

[Linked Redemption Certificafes
[Linked Redemption CertificateThe Certificates are Linked Redemption Certifsai
the amount payable on early redemption followingzanly Redemption Trigger will b
on the basis of the Redemption Payoff which isudated in accordance withName of
type of Redemptigh below and expressed as a percentage. The anmayatble on
redemption on [the redemption date][each date achimstalment payments are mad
will be on the basis of the Redemption Payoff whiglcalculated in accordance wi
[(Name of type of Redempt)pand expressed as a percentage. Wher&Jitterlying

Value reflects the price, level or rate of the relevinderlying (without regard to an

1%
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currency of denomination of such price, level deyas the case may be) at the reley
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time and theRedemption Determination Date(s)is][are] [e].
Underlying(s): [e]]

(Replicate formulae, relevant value(s), relevantkkith Redemption description a
other related provisions from the terms and cooditi of the Certificatek.

[e] (insert name of standard or combination inteyeist applicable for Redemptio
Determination Dated]].

[Combination Addition Redemptipn
[Combination Capitalisation Redemptjon
[Combination Complex Digital Redemptjon
[Combination Division Redemptipn
[Combination Multiplication Redemptibn
[Combination Ratchet Redempfjon
[Combination Range Redempfjon

[Combination Resettable Range Redemption

nd

>

[Combination Snowrange Redemption

[Combination Subtract Redempt]on

[Combination Maximum Redemptjon

[Combination Minimum Redemption

[Combination Complex Digital Basket Redemgtion
[Combination Complex Digital Basket Contingency Reuteor]
[Combination Payoff-Linked Digital Redempfjon
[Combination Rainbow Performance Redemgtion
[Standard Fixed Redemptipn

[Standard Asian Option Redempfjon

[Standard Collar Redemptipn

[Standard Floater Redemptipn

[Standard Floored Floater Redemptjon

[Standard Inverse Floater Redempiion

[Standard Strangle Redemptjon

[Standard Alternative Basket Redemption

[Standard Strangle Basket Redemgtion

[Standard Option Basket Redemption

[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Redemption
[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Redemption
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Redemption

[Standard Volbond Redemptjon

[Standard Year on Year Participation Redemgtion

[Standard Lookback Maximum Performance Basket Rettahp
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[Standard Lookback Minimum Performance Basket Reti@mhp
[Standard Maximum-Minimum Basket Redemjption
[Standard Volbond Basket Redemplion

[Standard Year on Year Participation Basket Redempti
[Standard Fixed Digital Redemptipn

[Standard Fixed-to-Floating Redempt]on

[Standard Range Accrual Redemption

[Standard Resettable Range Accrual Redemption
[Standard 3D Range Accrual Redemption

[Standard Total Range Accrual Redemption

[Standard Fixed Digital Basket Redemption

[Standard Power Redemptjon

[Standard Dual Range Accrual Redemption

[Standard Trend Participation Redempfion

[Standard Lookback Trend Participation Redemgtion
[Standard Average Trend Participation Redemgtion
[Standard Trend Participation Basket Redempgtion
[Standard Average Trend Participation Basket Redemipt
[Standard Multi Fixed Digital Redemptipn

[Standard Digital to Participation Redemptijon
[Standard Product Basket Redemption

[Standard Multi Fixed Basket Redemption

[Standard Fixed Range Accrual Redemgtion
[Standard ABF Redemptipn

[Standard Worst of Redempt]on

[Standard Knock-out Range Accrual Redemjption

[Standard Rainbow Performance Redemjfgtion
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[Knock-out Early Redemption Triggefhe Underlying Value may also affect when f{
Certificates redeem as Knock-out Early RedemptioggEr is applicable.

If on [any Knock-out Observation Date] [at any timhering the Knock-out Observatig

Period], a Knock-out Trigger occurs, the Issuel vatleem all of the Certificates at the

amount determined in accordance with the relevasdelRption Method (thé&arly

Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the Early Regdaon Date
(being[e]).

A Knock-out Early Redemption Trigger occurs if thénderlying Value of the
Underlying is [greater than][greater than or equal to][gre#ttan][less than] the Lowe
Limit [and][or][lower than][lower than or equal fgjreater than] the Upper Limit.

Underlying Value is the price, level or rate of the relevant Ungeg (without regard tq

5

=

any currency of denomination of such price, levekate, as the case may be) at the

relevant time.

Underlying: Knock-out Upper Limit: Lower Limit:
Observation
[Date][Period]:

[e] [e] [e] [e]]

[Knock-out Multi Underlying Early Redemption Triggd&tach Underlying Value may

also affect when the Certificates redeem as Knook-®lulti Underlying Early

Redemption Trigger is applicable. If on a Knock-@bservation Date, a Knock-out

Multi Underlying Trigger occurs, the Issuer willdeem all of the Certificates at th
amount determined in accordance with the relevasdelRption Method (thé&arly
Redemption Amount) with accrued interest, if any, on the Early Regéon Date
(being [o]).

A Knock-out Multi Underlying Trigger occurs if the Basket Value is [great
than][greater than or equal to][less than] the Lowenit [and][or][lower than][lower
than or equal to][greater than] the Upper Limit.

Basket Value on the relevant day is the sum of the individuautes of Leverage
multiplied by the Underlying Value of each Undenigiobserved on the relevant day.
Underlying Value is the price, level or rate of the relevant Unged (without regard tg
any currency of denomination of such price, levalabe, as the case may be) at the
relevant time.

e

Knock-out Lower Limit . Upper Limit. Margin:
Observation Date(s):

[*] [e] [e] [e]

I: Underlying . Leverage:

]

[e]

[e]]

[Knock-out Interest Switch Payoff Feature/Knock-®asket Interest Switch Payd
Feature/Knock-out Redemption Switch Payoff Feakumetk-out Basket Redempti
Switch Payoff FeatureThe Underlying Value may also effect the basis wamich
[interest][final redemption][instalment redemptids]paid as [Knock-out Interest Switq
[Basket] Payoff Feature][Knock-out Redemption SwitiBasket] Payoff Feature] i
applicable, as set out in more detail in Eleme8t]C.

N

(2]

C.16

The expiration
or redemption

[Not Applicable]
[Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, ragions and directives, [the fing

i
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date of
derivative
Securities — the
exercise date or
final reference
date.

redemption date of the Certificates u][the final instalment redemption date of t
Certificates is ¢]].

ne

[y

—

14

Cc.17 Settlement [Not Applicable]
procedure [The Certificates will be cash settled os].] [Certificates will be delivered one]
[against payment of the issue price of the Cestéis][free of payment of the issue pri
of the Certificates].]
[The Certificates are cleared through [Eurocledgfstream, Luxembourg][Deposita
Trust Company][the Swedish CSD]][the Norwegian Cfi3 Finnish CSD][Monte
Titoli S.p.A.][other] and settlement will be in accordance with thecpeaures and loca
practices relevant to such clearing system.]
C.18 Procedure on [Not Applicable]
return on [The value of an underlying will affect [whetheretiCertificates redeem early] [and
Securities [the amount paid [or the [Deliverable Obligatio&dhds] delivered] on the redemptio
as set out in more detail in Element C.8 and C.15.]
C.19 Final reference | [Not Applicable]
price of [The final value of the underlying[s] is calculated looking at [the price, level or rate
underlying [the][each] underlying (without regard to any cueg of denomination of such pric
asset level or rate, as the case may be) at the reldirmpton [the Redemption Determinati
Date (being ¢])], as calculated by the Calculation Agent.]|[{la@erage
value][minimum value][maximum value][of the Undearg][change in value of th¢
Underlying] observed by the Calculation Agent ojsgecify relevant datg$
C.20 Type of [Not Applicable. The amount (if any) payable aseiest or on redemption and the d
underlying on which the Certificates redeem is not linkedriauaderlying.]
asset

[The Certificates are Credit Linked Certificategrepeat the information below wit]
respect to each reference enfjty

reference entity:d]
credit event(s): €]

ate
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obligations: [each obligation of [reference entitgescribed by the following
obligation categoryl[y][ies]: [payment][borrowed m&y][reference obligation
only][bond][loan][bond or loan] and having the ltaking obligation characteristics: [no
subordinated][specified currency][not sovereigmder][not domestic currency][nd
domestic law][listed][not domestic issuance][, kexcluding the following exclude
obligation[s]: [e]].

reference obligation[s]:e]]]

<

L=

[The Certificates are Bond Linked Certificatesrefleat the information below with
respect to each bojd
bond issuer: 4]

bond: [e]

cusip/isin: o]

bond event(s):q]]
[The Underlying is [an index][a proprietary indea[ inflation index][a commodity][a
benchmark rate][an FX rate][an exchange traded]fihtdformation relating to it can b
found at p].]]

[There are multiple Underlyings, [they are [a conaltion of][all] [index/proprietary

index/inflation index/commaodity/benchmark rate/ Fate/exchange traded fund], as set
out below:

1%

Underlyingy: Underlying ey Underlying gay: Underlying oy
[e] [e] [e] [e]]
[Information relating to each can be found, asosgtelow:

Underlyingy: Underlying gey: Underlying gey: Underlying ey

[o] [o] [o] [el1]

c.z21

Indication of
the market
where the
securities will
be traded and
for which
prospectus has
been published.

[Not Applicable]

[Certificates will be admitted to trading on [theish Stock Exchange's regulat
market][on the Electronic Securitised Derivativearkkt of Borsa Italiana S.p.A.)][th
Regulated Market (Regulierter Markt) of the Framkf8tock Exchange][the Regulated
Market maintained by Euronext Paris S.A.][af][[and will be offered to the public in
[France][Republic of Italy][Luxembourg][lreland].

D
mQ




Section D — Risks

D.2

Key risk factors
relating to the
Issuer

The following key risk factors relating to the Issuits activities, the market in which|i

operates, and its structure may affect the capadithe Issuer to fulfil its obligation
under the Certificates issued under the Programme:

- Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or couraetywill be unable or unwilling to meg
a commitment that it has entered into with Créditiéole CIB FG or Crédit Agricolg
CIB FS (as the case may be).
- Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Crédit Agricole CIBG or Crédit Agricole CIB FS (as th
case may be) will encounter difficulty in realisiagsets or otherwise raising funds
meet commitments.

- Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk is the risk thasesiwhen there is an imbalance betw
rate and non-rate sensitive assets, liabilitiesathidalance sheet items.

- Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the valueadfinancial instrument will fluctuat
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. tCiAéliicole CIB FG and Crédi

Agricole CIB FS foreign exchange exposure arisemfissuing debt in currencies oth
than Euro.

Uy

—

D.3

Key risk factors
relating to the
Securities

[Not Applicable]

[The Certificates involve a high degree of riskavigéstors should recognise that th
Certificates may mature worthless and should begresl to sustain a total loss of t
purchase price of their Certificatesdlete if Certificates have a minimum redempt
valug This risk reflects the nature of a Certificateaasasset which, other factors he

constant, tends to decline in value over time ahithvmay become worthless when i

matures [(except to the extent of any minimum reaé@n value)]Include if
Certificates have a minimum redemption véllavestors should be experienced wj
respect to options and option transactions, shaaolderstand the risks of transactio
involving the Certificates and should reach an stwent decision only after caref
consideration, with their advisers, of the suitépibf such Certificates in light of the
particular financial circumstances.]

[Insert where the Certificates may be redeemed poidheir scheduled maturity date
Early redemption

Certain events or circumstances may lead to théifiCates being redeemed prior
their scheduled maturity date [including followiag election by [the Issuer] [or] [th
Certificateholders]. In such circumstances, Cediftholders may not be able to reinvj
the redemption proceeds so as to receive the retuey might receive on th
Certificates.]

[Insert in the case of all Certificates
Potential losses arising on redemption

Investors should be aware that the [Early Redemptimount][,][Instalment
Redemption Amount] [or] [Final Redemption Amounthynbe less than the princip
amount of the Certificates. [The Redemption Methagplicable to the [Final

=
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Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amount] ymhe different to the




Redemption Method applicable to the Early Redemptimount.]]

[Insert in the case of Fixed Rate Certificates
Changes to market interest rates

Changes in market interest rates may adverselyctaffee value of the Fixed Ra
Certificates.

[Insert in the case of Floating Rate Certificates
Varying interest
Interest income on Floating Rate Certificates carti® anticipated. Due to varyin

interest income, investors are not able to detezrainlefinite yield on the Floating Rate

Certificates at the time they purchase them.]
[Insert where the Certificates are not Secured Gesties
Ranking of the Certificates

The Certificates [and the Guarantee each] constiggneral, unsecured, contract
obligations of the Issuer [and, as the case majhleeGuarantor] and of no other pers
Any person who purchases such Certificates isnglyipon the creditworthiness of tl
Issuer [and the Guarantor] and has no rights utitkerConditions against any oth
person.]

[Insert in all cases
Paymentsin a specified currency

The Issuer will pay principal [and interest] on tBGertificates [and the Guarantor w|
make any payments under the Guarantee] in the fggbdCurrency. This presen
certain risks relating to currency conversions nif iavestor’s financial activities ar
denominated principally in a different currency.

Conflicts of interest

e

g

w =

Certain potential conflicts of interest exist oryraise between Certificateholders and

certain other parties which have the potentialdeeasely affect Certificateholders.
Compounding of risks

Various risks relating to the Certificates may lmerelated or compounded and su
correlation and/or compounding may result in inseghvolatility in the value of th
Certificates and/or in increased losses for Cestéholders.

Legal and tax risks

Certain risks arise as a result of applicable lal(ding applicable tax law) which hay
the potential to adversely affect Certificatehotder

Trading Certificatesin the secondary market

Certificates may have no established trading mankedn issued, and one may ne
develop. If a market does develop, it may not bey Viguid. Therefore, investors ma
not be able to sell their Certificates easily opates that will provide them with the
anticipated yield or a yield comparable to similavestments that have a develop
secondary market.
Credit ratings
Credit rating agencies may assign credit ratingthéoCertificates. The ratings may n
reflect the potential impact of all the risks arttier factors that may affect the value
the Certificates. A reduction in the rating, if amgcorded to the Certificates, or of t
outstanding debt securities of the Issuer [or thar@ntor] could result in a reduction
the trading value of the Certificates.]

D
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[Insert for Italian Certificates which are subject the Dual Currency (Interest) Pay-a




Feature

Payments in the Interest Currencly][ies]

The nominal amount of the Certificates is denon@dah [(nsert Specified Currengly
and is protected in lifsert Specified Currengly Investors who calculate the
investment performance inlfiert Interest Currency(ieg)are exposed to the risk

unfavourable change in thdréert relevant exchange rgleexchange rate (due to int

alia the devaluation of thelf(sert Specified Currengly and to the risk that authoritig

with jurisdiction over [[nhsert Interest Currency(ieg) may impose exchange contro
Therefore they may receive an Interest Amountlimsgrt Interest Currency(ieg)which

is lower than an Interest Amount calculated on tesis of a nominal amount

denominated in [(sert Interest Currency(ieg)at the Issue Date.]

[Insert for Italian Certificates which are subjea the Dual Currency (Redemptio
Pay-off Feature

Payments in the Redemption Currencly][ies]

The nominal amount of the Certificates is denonddah [(nsert Specified Currengly
and is protected in lifsert Specified Currenyly Investors who calculate the

of unfavourable change in thdri§ert relevant exchange rateexchange rate (due t
inter alia the devaluation of thelijéert Specified Currengl) and to the risk tha
authorities with jurisdiction over litsert Redemption Currency(igs)may impose
exchange controls. Therefore they may receive al Rredemption Amount in ligsert
Redemption Currency(ie$)which is lower than the initial nominal amourgrdbminated
in [(Insert Redemption Currency(ig¢kat the Issue Date.]

[Insert where the Certificates are Secured Certiisa
Security

r

investment performance inlfisert Redemption Currency(igpre exposed to the rigk
o}
t

The security created in respect of the Certific&g®imarily a security interest over the

- =
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Collateral Account in which the Collateral Assets held. Where Collateral Assets are

held through a clearing system (either directlytoough a sub-custodian), the intere
which the Custodian will hold and which are tradedhe clearing system are not t
physical Collateral Assets themselves but a sesfesontractual rights against su

sts
he
ch

clearing system. As a result, where the CollatAsdets are held in a clearing systgm,

the security in respect of the Certificates mayetéthe form of an assignment of t
Issuer's rights against the Custodian under a diastoagreement rather than a chal
over the Collateral Assets themselves.

It will not necessarily be the case that the Cetialt Assets will be sufficient to satis

the claims of a Certificateholder in respect of @ertificates following the occurrence

ne
rge

of a Secured Certificate Event of Default and inhsaircumstances, investors may lgse
all or a substantial portion of their investmeritniarly, certain events or circumstances,

such as an insolvency in respect of any of thevegieparties, may lead to a delay|i

realisation of the Collateral Assets and paymentdglivery] of any related amounts
investors.]
[The capital invested in the Certificates is at rik. Consequently, the amount a

prospective investor may receive on redemption ofd Certificates may be less tharn
the amount invested by it and may be zero (Q).




D.6

Risk warning
that investors
may lose value of
entire investment

[Not Applicable]

[The Certificates involve a high degree of riskivgstors should recognise that
their Certificates may mature worthless and shbelgrepared to sustain a total
loss of the purchase price of their Certificat¢®glete if Certificates have
minimum redemption vallid his risk reflects the nature of a Certificate aas
asset which, other factors held constant, tendketline in value over time and
which may become worthless when it matures [(extepthe extent of an
minimum redemption value)liclude if Certificates have a minimum
redemption value Investors should be experienced with respecptions an
option transactions, should understand the risksrasfsactions involving th
Certificates and should reach an investment detisioly after carefu
consideration, with their advisers, of the suitépibf such Certificates in ligh
of their particular financial circumstances.]

[Insert where the Certificates may be redeemed poidheir scheduled maturity
date

Early redemption
Certain events or circumstances may lead to théifiCates being redeemed
prior to their scheduled maturity date [includir@ldwing an election by [the
Issuer] [or] [the Certificateholders]. In such cimestances, Certificateholders
may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceedss to receive the return
they might receive on the Certificates.]

[Insert in the case of all Certificates

Potential losses arising on redemption

Investors should be aware that the [Early Redempfimount][,][Instalment
Redemption Amount] [or] [Final Redemption Amountiaynbe less than the
principal amount of the Certificates. [The RedemptMethod applicable to the
[Final Redemption Amount][Instalment Redemption Amfj may be different
to the Redemption Method applicable to the EarlgdReption Amount.]]

[Insert in respect of Certificates where payments larked to the performange
of an Underlying

Payments linked to an underlying asset

The [Linked Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption &fflyin respect of the
Certificates are linked to the value of the Undedy Investors should therefore
appreciate that they are taking a view on the vafube Underlying as it is used
for the purposes of determining the [Linked IntereSmounts] [and]
[Redemption Payoff].]

[Insert in respect of Certificates where payments larked to the performange
of a basket of Underlyings

Payments linked to a basket of underlying assets
The Certificates are linked to a basket of Undedgi and as such investars
should appreciate that they are taking a view oa W#alue of multiple
Underlyings as they are used for the purposes tdérihining the [Linked
Interest Amounts] [and] [Redemption Payoff].

The value of the basket will be affected by varidastors and its value as|a
whole may be negative even if the performance ofage Underlyings is
positive.
[Insert in respect of Certificates where payments larked to the performange
of an Underlying or multiple Underlyings

Investors should be aware that:

()  the market price of the Certificates may beatite;

(i)  movements in the Underlying(s) may adverseffe@ the amount of
[principal] [and interest] to be paid on the Cecates and may also affect

D




the market value of the Certificates;
(i)  [they may receive no interest;]
(iv) payment of principal [or interest] may occur a different time or in &
different currency than expected,;

(v) the amount of principal to be repaid may bes lgan the stated nomin
amount of the Certificates or may even be zero;

(vi) [the][an] Underlying may be subject to sigodint fluctuations that mal
not correlate with changes in interest rates, cwies or other indices;

(vii) if [the][an] Underlying is applied to Certfates in conjunction with
multiplier greater than one or contains some otbeerage factor, th
effect of changes in the Underlying[s]on principai interest] payable
likely will be magnified; and

(viii) the timing of changes in [the][an] Underigmmay affect the actual yiel

to investors, even if the average level is constsigth their expectations.

In general, the earlier the change in [the][an] &mhdng, the greater th

effect on yield.]
[Insert in respect of Certificates where payments swbject to a multiplien
leverage or similar feature or to a cap or a floor
Structured payments
The Certificates are structured such that the atigupayable in respect ¢
[interest] [and] [principal] [is][are] subject td¢ application of [multipliers o
leverage or other similar factors, or a combinatidnthose features or oth
similar related features] [and to a [cap] [andb§it]]. The market value of th
Certificates may therefore be even more volatifntthose for securities that
not include those features.
[Small changes in the value of the Underlying maweh disproportionat
consequences on the [Interest Amounts] [and] [Redem Payoff] paid in
respect of the Certificates.]
[The effect of a [cap] [or] [floor][, or a combinah thereof,] may mean that tf
investor will not fully participate in any positivgperformance of thg
Underlying(s) and any payments in respect of thdii@ates will be lower thar
they would have been without a [cap,] [floor] [@nabination thereof,] [as th
case may be].]
[Insert in all cases
Amounts payable determined by reference to a formula
Amounts payable in respect of the Certificates getermined by reference

formulae, as described in the Elements above. TéwéfiCates therefore entajl

significant risks not associated with similar inweents in a conventional de
security. Investors should fully understand theidbas which payments i
respect of the Certificates will be determined @cadance with the applicab

e
Conditions and should appreciate that neither timeent nor the historical value
f

of the Underlying[s] should be taken as an indaratbf future performance ¢
Underlying[s].]

[Insert where the Certificates are subject to insevitch provisions
I nterest rate switch

The Certificates are subject to provisions whicbvpgle for a change of th
interest rate upon certain events. Such featurgsmagatively affect the valu
of the Certificates or result in a less favourabterest rate.]

[Insert in the case of Fixed Rate Certificates
Changesto market interest rates
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Changes in market interest rates may adverselgtdffe value of the Fixed Ra




Certificates.

[Insert in the case of Floating Rate Certificates

Varying interest

Interest income on Floating Rate Certificates carv® anticipated. Due t

varying interest income, investors are not abledtermine a definite yield o
the Floating Rate Certificates at the time theychase them.]

[Insert where the Certificates are Fixed Rate Ciedibs or Zero Coupo
Certificates

Futureyield

The yield associated with [Fixed Rate Certificgd&sio Coupon Certificateg
will differ according to the price at which the @Gicates are purchased.]
[Insert where the Certificates are Zero Coupon Giedtes

Trading price of Zero Coupon Certificates

The prices at which zero coupon Certificates triadie secondary market tef
to fluctuate more in relation to general changemiarest rates than do pric
for conventional interest-bearing securities. Darinthe lifetime of the
Certificates, the market value of these Certifisateay be lower than th
invested capital.]

[Insert where the Certificates are not Secured @Geaties

Ranking of the Certificates

The Certificates [and the Guarantee each] constitgéneral, unsecure
contractual obligations of the Issuer [and, asctse may be, the Guarantor] a
of no other person. Any person who purchases sectifiCates is relying upot
the creditworthiness of the Issuer [and the Guarhqand has no rights under t
Conditions against any other person.]

[Insert in all cases

Paymentsin a specified currency

The Issuer will pay principal [and interest] on ertificates [and the Guarant
will make any payments under the Guarantee] inSpecified Currency. Thi
presents certain risks relating to currency coneassif an investor’'s financia
activities are denominated principally in a diffiereurrency.
Conflicts of interest

Certain potential conflicts of interest exist or ymaarise betweer
Certificateholders and certain other parties winatie the potential to adverse
affect Certificateholders.

Compounding of risks

Various risks relating to the Certificates may loerelated or compounded a
such correlation and/or compounding may resultnicreased volatility in thg
value of the Certificates and/or in increased Is$ee Certificateholders.
Legal and tax risks

Certain risks arise as a result of applicable lawlyding applicable tax law
which have the potential to adversely affect Cedtholders.

Trading Certificates in the secondary market

Certificates may have no established trading manketn issued, and one m
never develop.

If a market does develop, it may not be very ligdiderefore, investors may n
be able to sell their Certificates easily or atesi that will provide them wit
their anticipated yield or a yield comparable tmifar investments that have
developed secondary market.

> O

nd
S

e




Credit ratings

Credit rating agencies may assign credit ratingthéoCertificates. The rating
may not reflect the potential impact of all theksisand other factors that ma
affect the value of the Certificates. A reductiarthe rating, if any, accorded
the Certificates, or of the outstanding debt séiesriof the Issuer [or th
Guarantor] could result in a reduction in the tnadvalue of the Certificates.]

[Insert where the Certificates are Secured Certifisa

Security

The security created in respect of the Certificedgmimarily a security intereg
over the Collateral Account in which the Collatersdsets are held. Whe
Collateral Assets are held through a clearing sygwther directly or through
sub-custodian), the interests which the Custodi#irheld and which are trade
in the clearing system are not the physical Calktéssets themselves but
series of contractual rights against such cleasysgiem. As a result, where t
Collateral Assets are held in a clearing systera, dbcurity in respect of th
Certificates may take the form of an assignmeriheflssuer's rights against t
Custodian under the a custodian agreement rathaar ¢ charge over th
Collateral Assets themselves.

It will not necessarily be the case that the Ceflalt Assets will be sufficient t
satisfy the claims of a Certificateholder in regpeicthe Certificates following
the occurrence of a Secured Certificate Event ofallle and in such

circumstances, investors may lose all or a suliatgndrtion of their investment.

Similarly, certain events or circumstances, suclarasnsolvency in respect
any of the relevant parties, may lead to a delagealisation of the Collaterz
Assets and payment [or delivery] of any related am®to investors.]
[Insert if the Certificates are Credit Linked Ceddiftes

Credit Linked Certificates

The Certificates differ from ordinary debt secwrdtiin that the amount ¢
[interest] [and] [principal] payable is dependentwhether any Credit Event(
have occurred and that payments upon redemptioretfeh at maturity o
earlier) may be linked to the value of the Refeeef@bligation(s) including, i
applicable, the value of any related underlyingdieg arrangements and th

investors not receiving repayment of all or anythadir initial investment in th
Certificates. The likelihood of a Credit Event ogtng with respect to
Reference Entity will generally fluctuate with, angst other things, th
financial condition of the Reference Entity, thengel economic conditions, th
condition of certain financial markets, politicalemts, developments or trends
any particular industry and changes in prevailingeriest or foreign exchang
rates. The historical experience of obligors arstsscomparable to a Referer
Entity is not necessarily indicative of the risk ©fedit Events occurring wit
respect to any Reference Entity.]

[Insert if the Certificates are Bond Linked Certifies

Bond Linked Certificates

The Certificates differ from ordinary debt secwdtiin that the amount ¢
[interest] [and] [principal] payable is dependentwhether any Bond Event(
have occurred and that payments upon redemptioretfeh at maturity o
earlier) may be linked to the value of the relevaand including, if applicable
the value of any related underlying hedging arramgy@s and that this may |k
less than the full amount of investors’ initial @stment and result in investq
not receiving repayment of all or any of their i@litinvestment in Bond Linke

this may be less than the full amount of investoiial investment and result |£

S

Yy
to

—

D

al

nf
5)

at

4%

e
in

je
ce

=)

nf
5)

L

De
rs
)

Certificates. The likelihood of a Bond Event ocingrwill generally fluctuate




with, amongst other things, the financial conditioh the Bond Issuer, th
general economic conditions, the condition of d¢erfimancial markets, politic
events, developments or trends in any particulaustry and changes
prevailing interest or foreign exchange rates. fis¢orical experience of othg
bonds comparable to the Bond is not necessariigatige of the risk of a Bon
Event occurring with respect to any Bond.]

[Insert where the Certificates are subject to phgissettiement

Cash settlement

Payments on the Certificates may be made in casteiitain circumstance
rather than by delivery of physical assets. Thig/ rha less advantageous
Certificateholders than settlement by delivery loygical assets.]

The capital invested in the Certificates is at riskConsequently, the amount
a prospective investor may receive on redemption adfs Certificates may be
less than the amount invested by it and may be ze(0).

er

Section E — Other

for

E.2b | Reasons for offer | [Not Applicable. The reasons for the offer and tiet proceeds of the issue are
and use of [making profit] [and] [hedging certain risks].]
proceeds when [The net proceeds from the issue of the Certifeaid be applied by the Issuer fos][]
different from
making profit
and/or hedging
certain risks

E.3 | Terms and [Not Applicable. The Certificates are not offeredliie public.]
conditions of [The Certificates are being offered to the public @ Non-exempt Offer ir
offer [[France][and][Republic of Italy][and][Luxembourgpd][Ireland]. Any investof

intending to acquire or acquiring any Certificafiesn an Authorised Offeror will do sa,

and offers and sales of the Certificates to angtoreby an Authorised Offeror will b
made, in accordance with any terms and other agramegt in place between su
Authorised Offeror and such investor including asptice, allocation and settleme
arrangements.

Offer Price: [Issue Price][specify]
Conditions to which the offer is subject: [Not Amalble][give detail$
Description of the application process: [Not Applite][give details

including the time period, and ar
possible amendments, during whi
the offer will be opéen

Description of possibility to reduce[Not Applicable]give detail$
subscriptions and manner for refunding excess
amount paid by applicants:

Details of the minimum and/or maximumNot Applicable]give detail$
amount of application:

Details of the method and time limits for payingNot Applicable]give detail$
up and delivering the Certificates:

Manner in and date on which results of the off¢Not Applicable][give detail$
are to be made public:
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Section E — Other

Procedure for exercise of any right of pregfNot Applicable]give detail$
emption, negotiability of subscription rights and
treatment of subscription rights not exercised:

Whether tranche(s) have been reserved fidtot Applicable]give detail$
certain countries:

Process for notification to applicants of théNot Applicable]give detail$
amount allotted and the indication whether
dealing may begin before notification is made:

Amount of any expenses and taxes specificallot Applicable]give detail$
charged to the subscriber or purchaser:

[}

E.4 | Interest material | [Not Applicable. So far as the Issuer is aware,peoson involved in the offer of th
to issue including | Certificates has an interest material to the offerluding conflicting interests.]
conflicting [The [o] will be paid aggregate commissions equal&p][[Any [e] [and its affiliates]
interests may also have engaged, and may in the future engaffeansactions or perform othg

services for] [the Issuer and its affiliates] i thrdinary course of business.]

E.7 | Estimated [Not Applicable. There are no expenses chargebaartvestor by the [Issuer][offeror].]

expenses charged
to investor

[The estimated expenses charged to the investtirebfissuer][offeror] amount tos].]




